# **City of San Diego**

ORIGINAL

CONTRACTOR'S NAME: <u>SC Valley Engineering, Inc.</u> ADDRESS: 656 Front Street, El Cajon, CA 92020 TELEPHONE NO.: 619-444-2366 FAX NO.: 619-444-2333

CITY CONTACT: CLEMENTINA GIORDANO, Address: 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200 MS 56P, San Diego, CA 92101 Email: cgiordano@sandiego.gov; Phone: (619) 533-5227; Fax: (619) 236-5904

M.Oriqat/BD/EGZ



## CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

## FOR

## WATER GROUP JOB 941

VOLUME 1 OF 2

BID NO.:	K-13-1048-DBB-3
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	B-11037
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	2000
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	4
PROJECT TYPE:	КВ

## THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

> THE CITY'S SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SLBE PROGRAM.

The engineering Specifications and Special Provisions contained herein have been prepared by or under the direction of the Registered Engineer:

1) For City Engineer

**P**-Date -12

Seal:



Bid No. K-13-1048-DBB-3 Water Group Job 941

.

## 

The 2010 edition of the City of San Diego Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction ("The WHITEBOOK") now contains the following distinct Contract Documents:

- 1) *Equal Opportunity Contracting Program Requirements* This Contract Document sets forth the standard requirements for the City's equal opportunity contracting program. When additional requirements by the funding source e.g., federal or state agencies are physically included in the contract documents or by reference and there is a discrepancy, the funding source requirements shall govern unless specified otherwise in the Special Provisions.
- 2) *City Supplement* The City Supplement shall be used in conjunction with the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction ("The GREENBOOK"), 2009 Edition. The specifications contained in City Supplement take precedence over the specifications contained in The GREENBOOK, 2009 Edition.

Certain parts of the City Supplement have been highlighted in yellow for the convenience of the users only and shall not affect the interpretation of the Contract.

To obtain The GREENBOOK contact the publisher at: <u>http://www.bnibooks.com</u>

The WHITEBOOK is available only in electronic format under Engineering Documents and References at: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip/</u>

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

DI	ESCRIPTION	PAGE NUMBER
1.	REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE	
2.	SPECIAL NOTICE SLBE AND ELBE PROGRAM	6-10
3.	INVITATION TO BIDS	
4.	INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS	
5.	CONTRACT FORMS	
	1. Agreement/Contract	
	2. Performance Bond and Labor and Materialmen's Bond	
6.	CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION	
	1. Drug-Free Workplace	
	2. American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance	
	3. Contractor Standards - Pledge of Compliance	
	4. Affidavit of Disposal	
7.	SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS	
8.	APPENDICES:	
	1. APPENDIX A Notice of Exemption	
	2. APPENDIX B Fire Hydrant Meter Program	
	3. APPENDIX C Materials Typically Accepted by Certificate of Compliance	e67-68
	4. APPENDIX D Sample City Invoice	
	5. APPENDIX E Location Map	
	6. APPENDIX F Hydrostatic Discharge Form	
	7. APPENDIX G Adjacent Project(s)	

## **REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE**

This table is intended to serve as a convenient tool for listing forms and documents required at different times. It is neither exhaustive nor must be considered a Contract Document by itself. Therefore, the users must review the entire Contract Documents and become familiar with the required documentation and the submittal schedule associated with each document.

Bidder's attention is directed to the City's Municipal Code §22.0807(e),(3)-(5) for important information regarding required documentation.

The specified EOC forms are all available for download from the EOC Program's web site at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/forms/index.shtml

ITEM	WHEN	BY	WHAT
1.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Proposal (Bid)
2.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Bid Bond
3.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Non-collusion Affidavit to be Executed By Bidder and Submitted with Bid under 23 USC 112 and PCC 7106
4.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Contractors Certification of Pending Actions
5.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification of Compliance
6.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA35 - List of Subcontractors
7.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA40 - Named Equipment/Material Supplier List
8.	WITHIN 3 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	SLBE-ELBE Good Faith Documentations
9.	WITHIN 3 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA60 – List of Work Made Available
10.	WITHIN 3 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Proof of Valid DBE-MBE-WBE-DVBE Certification Status e.g., Certs.
11.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Names of the principle individual owners of the Apparent Low Bidder - In the event the firm is employee owned or publicly held, then the fact should be stated and the names of the firm's principals and officers shall be provided.
12.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	<ul> <li>If the Contractor is a Joint Venture, the following information must be submitted:</li> <li>Joint Venture Agreement</li> <li>Joint Venture License</li> </ul>
13.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Form BB05 - Work Force Report

## **REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE**

ІТЕМ	WHEN	BY	WHAT
14.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contract Forms - Agreement
15.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contract Forms - Payment and Performance Bond
16.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements
17.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractor Certification - Drug-Free Workplace
18.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractor Certification - American with Disabilities Act
19.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractors Standards - Pledge of Compliance
20.	BY 5th OF EACH MONTH	CONTRACTOR	Form CC20 - Monthly Employment Report
21.	BY 5th OF EACH MONTH	CONTRACTOR	Form CC25 - Monthly Invoicing Report
22.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Form CC10 - Contract Change Order (CCO)
23.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Form CC15 - Final Summary Report
24.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Affidavit of Disposal

## SPECIAL NOTICE SMALL LOCAL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (SLBE) AND EMERGING LOCAL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (ELBE) PROGRAM

- 1. **INTRODUCTION.** This contract is subject to the requirements of the SLBE Program as specified in the SLBE-ELBE section of the City's EOCP Requirements included in The WHITEBOOK.
  - **1.1.** The Bidders are required to review The WHITEBOOK and become familiar with the detailed specifications including the required documentation and the submittal schedule as related to SLBE-ELBE program.

## 2. AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY'S GENERAL EOCP REQUIREMENTS.

- **III.** Equal Employment Opportunity Outreach Program (A). DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
  - A. Competitive Bids. If a contract is competitively solicited, the Apparent Low Bidder shall submit a *Work Force Report (Form BB05)* or an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Plan, within 10 Working Days after receipt by the Bidder of Contract forms to the City for approval as specified in the Notice of Intent to Award letter from the City.

## 3. AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY'S EOCP SLBE-ELBE REQUIREMENTS.

- VIII. Subcontracting Efforts Review and Evaluation (2b)). DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
  - b) "Make information of forthcoming opportunities available to SLBE-ELBE firms and arrange time for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by SLBE-ELBE firms in the competitive process. This includes posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 10 Working Days before the Bid or Proposal due date."

## VIII. Subcontracting Efforts Review and Evaluation (3) and (4). DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

3. Good Faith Effort Documentation Requirements

If the stated SLBE-ELBE subcontractor participation percentages are not met, the Bidder shall submit, within 3 Working Days of the Bid opening, information necessary to establish adequate good faith efforts were taken to meet the contract subcontractor participation percentages. The required documentation includes the following:

### A. SLBE-ELBE WRITTEN SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS

Bidders must solicit SLBE-ELBE firms on the City's approved SLBE-ELBE list. Solicitations for subcontract/vendor work must comply with the following requirements:

- 1. The solicitation must be project specific, dated and include bid number and project name. *Solicitations must be made to the SLBE-ELBE firms at least 10 business days prior to bid opening.* 
  - 1.1. Broadcast solicitation is acceptable.

- 2. Solicitation must state which items or portions of work the bidder is requesting subcontractor/vendor pricing.
  - 2.1 It is the bidder's responsibility to demonstrate that enough work sufficient to meet the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage was made available to SLBE-ELBE firms. The bidder should make as many items of work available as possible to meet the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage, and at a minimum an amount of work equal to the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage. If necessary to reach the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage, the work should include those items normally performed by the bidder with its own forces, supplies and even items with a dollar value below 1/2 of 1% of the total bid. Bidders shall utilize Form AA60 to demonstrate compliance with this requirement and submit the completed form with Good Faith Effort documentation.
- 3. Solicitation must state that plans and specs are available at no cost to interested SLBE-ELBE firms and how to obtain them.
- 4. Solicitations must state that assistance is available from the bidder for SLBE-ELBE firms in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, or materials.
- 5. Solicitations must state that assistance is available from the bidder for SLBE-ELBE firms in obtaining bonding, lines of credit or insurance.
- 6. Bidder must solicit ALL City of San Diego Certified SLBE-ELBE firms who have the NAICS code for the subcontractor/vendor work sought by the general contractor.
  - 6.1. Bidders are not required to contact SLBE-ELBE firms that are noted as "General Contractor Only – Does not provide services as a subcontractor" in the PRISM compliance database or on the listing provided on the City website.
- 7. Bidders must provide copies of *ALL* solicitations with one of the following forms of verification *that the solicitations were sent: a)* If mailed: provide copies of the metered envelopes or certified mail receipts b) If faxed: provide copies of the fax transmittal confirmation sheet(s) c) If emailed: provide copies of the email delivery confirmation sheet(s). No credit shall be given for error messages, busy, cancelled, undeliverable, etc.
  - 7.1. When utilizing broadcast method bidder must clearly identify SLBE-ELBE firm on verification documentation submitted with GFE.
- B. SLBE-ELBE WRITTEN SOLICITATION FOLLOW UP REQUIREMENTS

Bidders must follow-up with all SLBE – ELBE firms that were notified of the subcontracting/vendor opportunities to determine their level of interest and commitment to bid the project. When following up with the SLBE – ELBE firms, the bidder must do the following:

- 1. Follow up communications must start no less than 5 business days prior to bid opening.
- 2. Bidders must make at least three follow-up telephone calls to each SLBE ELBE firm,

- 2.1. Bidders are not required to make and/or may stop making follow-up telephone calls once the SLBE-ELBE firm has provided written verification accepting or declining to bid the project. Written verification from SLBE-ELBE firm must be project specific.
- 2.2. Bidders must provide copy of written verification received from SLBE-ELBE firms with Good Faith Effort documentation.
- 2.3. Submit a telephone log, as proof of telephone calls, with the following requirements: project name, name of person making the phone call, name of firm contacted, contact person's name, date of call, time of call, and details of conversation.

## C. SUBCONTRACT AWARD SUMMARY

Bidders must act in good faith with interested SLBE-ELBE firms and may only reject bids for legitimate business reasons. The bidder must submit the following documentation:

- 1. A **DETAILED** summary sheet which includes bid item number, scope of work, subcontractor/vendor name, bid amount, certification type, subcontractor/vendor selection and reason for selection / non-selection of all the subcontractors/vendors that responded.
- 2. Copies of all subcontract/vendor bids received including bids for areas of work that were not included in the outreach and bids from both certified and non-certified subcontractors/vendors. If the Bidder decides to Self-Perform a scope of work, the Bidder *MUST* submit a detailed bid to show that the Bidder's price is competitive to the price of the subcontractors/vendors that responded to outreach efforts. All verbal bids *MUST* be substantiated by corresponding written bid from subcontractors/vendors.

## D. OUTREACH ASSISTANCE REQUIREMENTS

Written notice of subcontractor/vendor opportunities must be forwarded to local organizations or groups to assist with outreach efforts. When contacting local organizations or groups, the Bidder <u>must do</u> the following:

- 1. Contact a minimum of 5 local organizations or groups to provide assistance in contacting, recruiting and using SLBE-ELBE firms by written notice. For a listing of organizations or groups offering assistance, please visit the City of San Diego Equal Opportunity Contracting home page at http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/
- 2. Written notice must indicate the date of the notice and name of the local organization or group. Written notices must be forwarded to the organizations or groups at least 10 business days prior to bid opening.
- 3. Written notice must state which items or portions of work the bidder is requesting subcontractor/vendor pricing.
  - 3.1. It is the bidder's responsibility to demonstrate that enough work sufficient to meet the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage was made available to SLBE-ELBE firms. The bidder should make as many items of work available as possible to meet the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage, and at a minimum an amount of work equal to the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage. If necessary to reach the SLBE-ELBE participation percentage, the work should include those items normally performed by the bidder with its own forces,

supplies and even items with a dollar value below 1/2 of 1% of the total bid. Bidders shall utilize Form AA60 to demonstrate compliance with this requirement and submit the completed form with Good Faith Effort documentation.

- 4. Written notice must state that plans and specs are available at no cost to interested SLBE-ELBE firms and how to obtain them.
- 5. Written notice must state that assistance is available from the bidder for SLBE-ELBE firms in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, or materials.
- 6. Written notice must state that assistance is available from the bidder for SLBE-ELBE firms in obtaining bonding, lines of credit or insurance.
- 7. Bidders must provide copies of *ALL* notices with one of the following forms of verification that the notices were sent: a) If mailed: provide copies of the metered envelopes or certified mail receipts b) If faxed: provide copies of the fax transmittal confirmation sheet(s) c) If emailed: provide copies of the email delivery confirmation sheet(s). No credit shall be given for error messages, busy, cancelled, undeliverable, etc.
- **XI.** Suppliers. Last paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

For the purpose of achieving the mandatory subcontractor participation percentage, the City will not account for the Field Orders, Additive or Deductive, and Allowance Bid Items (when shown by the City as Allowance – Type II in the Bid and Proposal forms) in the calculation. Allowance – Type I Bid Items are part of the Base Bid integral to the SOW.

- 4. SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES. The Bidders are encouraged to take positive steps to diversify and expand their subcontractor solicitation base and to offer contracting opportunities to all certified Subcontractors including SLBEs, ELBEs, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, DVBEs and OBEs.
  - **4.1.** The City has incorporated **mandatory** SLBE-ELBE subcontractor participation percentages to enhance competition and maximize subcontracting opportunities. For the purpose of achieving the mandatory subcontractor participation percentages, a recommended breakdown of the SLBE and ELBE subcontractor participation percentages based upon certified SLBE and ELBE firms has also been provided to achieve the mandatory subcontractor participation percentages:

2. ELBE participation 15.0%

- **3.** Total mandatory participation **22.3%**
- **4.2** For the purpose of achieving the mandatory subcontractor participation percentage, the City will not account for the Field Orders, Additive or Deductive, and Allowance Bid Items (when shown by the City as Allowance Type II in the Bid and Proposal forms) in the calculation. Allowance Type I Bid Items are part of the Base Bid integral to the SOW.
- 5. **PRE-BID CONFERENCE.** A Pre-Bid Conference is scheduled for this contract as specified in the Invitation to Bids. The purpose of this meeting is to inform Bidders of the submittal requirements and provisions relative to the SLBE Program. Bidders are strongly encouraged to attend the Pre-Bid Conference to better understand the Good Faith Effort requirements of this contract.

- 6. **MANDATORY CONDITIONS.** Bid will be declared <u>non-responsive</u> if the Bidder fails the following mandatory conditions.
  - **6.1.** Bidder's inclusion of SLBE-ELBE certified subcontractors at the overall mandatory participation percentage identified in this document; **OR**
  - **6.2.** Bidder's submission of Good Faith Effort documentation demonstrating the Bidder made a good faith effort to outreach to and include SLBE-ELBE Subcontractors required in this document within 3 Working Days of the Bid opening if the overall mandatory participation percentage is not met.
- 7. **BID DISCOUNT.** This contract **is not** subject to the Bid Discount program as described in The WHITEBOOK, SLBE-ELBE Program Requirements, Section IV(2).
- 8. RESOURCES. The current list of certified SLBE-ELBE firms can be found on the EOC Department website at <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/</u>

## CITY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA

## **INVITATION TO BIDS**

1. RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS: Bid(s) will be received at the Public Works Contracting Group at 1200 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 200, SAN DIEGO, CA 92101 UNTIL 2:00 PM on SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 for performing work on the following project (Project):

## WATER GROUP JOB 941

2. **DESCRIPTION OF WORK:** The Work involves furnishing all labor, materials, equipment, services, and other incidental works and appurtenances for the construction of the Project as described below:

Construction consists of the installation of 2,439 linear feet of new 12" water mains, water services, valves, fire hydrants, curb ramps, and street resurfacing.

The Work shall be performed in accordance with:

- Bid No. <u>K-13-1048-DBB-3</u> and Plans numbered <u>36644-01-D</u> through <u>36644-09-D</u>, inclusive.
- **3.** ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE: The Engineer's estimate of the most probable price for this contract is \$725,000.
- 4. LOCATION OF WORK: The location of Work is Citywide unless specified otherwise as follows:

Ridgeview Drive between Laurel Street and Euclid Avenue in the City Heights Community.

- 5. CONTRACT TIME: The Contract Time for completion of the Work shall be 100 Working Days.
- 6. CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE CLASSIFICATION: In accordance with the provisions of California Law, the Contractor shall possess valid appropriate license(s) at the time that the Bid is submitted. Failure to possess the specified license(s) shall render the Bid as **non-responsive** and shall act as a bar to award of the Contract to any Bidder not possessing required license(s) at the time of Bid.

The City has determined the following licensing classification(s) for this contract:

Option	Classification(s)
1	CLASS A
2	CLASS C34

The Bidder shall satisfy the licensing requirement by meeting at least one of the listed options.

7. **PRE-BID CONFERENCE:** There will be a Pre-Bid Conference to discuss the scope of the Project, bidding requirements, and Equal Opportunity Contracting Program requirements and reporting procedures in the Public Works Contracting Group, Conference Room at 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92101 at 10:00 AM, on SEPTEMBER 5, 2012.

All potential bidders are encouraged to attend.

To request a copy of the agenda on an alternative format, or to request a sign language or oral interpreter for this meeting, call the Public Works Contracting Group at (619) 236-6000 at least 5 Working Days prior to the Pre-Bid Conference to ensure availability.

8. CITY CONTACT INFORMATION: See the cover of the Contract Documents.

**9. REFERENCE STANDARDS:** Except as otherwise noted or specified, the Work shall be completed in accordance with the following standards:

1. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

Document No.	Filed	Description	
PITS0504091	05-04-09	Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The GREENBOOK), 2009 Edition	
PITS090110-1	09-01-10	City of San Diego Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The WHITEBOOK), 2010 Update *	
AEC1231064	12-31-06	California Department of Transportation, Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD 2006)	
769023	09-11-84	Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications and the Equal Opportunity Clause	

NOTE: The City of San Diego Supplement, 2010 Update now consolidates various City Public Works Construction Standard Specifications which in the past were included in the Supplementary Special Provisions. The Bidders' attention is directed to this edition of the City Supplement for a close review to ensure no important information is missed for the preparation of the Bids.

#### 2. STANDARD DRAWINGS

Document No.	Filed	Description
AEC1230163	12-31-06	City of San Diego Standard Drawings*
N/A	Varies	City Standard Drawings - Updates Approved For Use (when specified)*
AEC0925061	09-25-06	Caltrans 2006 U.S. Customary Unit Standard Plans

NOTE: \*Available online under Engineering Documents and References at: http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip.

- **10. WAGE RATES:** Prevailing wages are not applicable to this project <u>unless specified otherwise</u> on the cover page of these specifications and when included in these specifications. See Funding Agency Provisions that follow this Invitation to Bid for more information.
- **11. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:** Upon receipt of the City's Notice of Intent to Award letter, the Contractor will be asked to submit all certificates of insurance and endorsements to the City.

Refer to sections 7-3, "LIABILITY INSURANCE", and 7-4, "WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE" of the Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP) for the insurance requirements which must be met.

You must ensure all required insurance certificates and endorsements are submitted accurately and on time. Failure to provide the requisite insurance documents by the date stated in the City's Notice of Intent to Award will result in delay of contract award and may result in annulment of the contract award or other more severe sanctions as provided in the City's Municipal Code §22.0807(e),(3)-(5).

Tony Heinrichs, Director Public Works Department

## INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. **PREQUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS:** The contractor(s) who intend to submit Bid or Proposal in response to this invitation to bid, or RFP's for GRC or As-Needed Design-Build Task Orders valued over \$50,000, must be pre-qualified for the total amount proposed, inclusive of all alternate bid items or the specified Task Order limits prior to the date of Bid submittal.

Bids from contractors who have not been pre-qualified as applicable, and Bids that exceed the maximum dollar amount at which contractors are pre-qualified, will be deemed **non-responsive** and ineligible for award or a Task Order authorization. Complete information and prequalification questionnaires are available at:

#### http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip/services/consultcontract/prequal.shtml

The completed questionnaire, financial statement, and bond letter or a copy of the contractor's SLBE-ELBE certification and bond letter, must be submitted no later than 2 weeks prior to the bid opening to the Public Works Department - Engineering & Capital Projects Prequalification Program, 1010 Second Avenue, Suite 1200, San Diego, CA 92101. For additional information or the answer to questions about the prequalification program, please contact David Stucky at 619-533-3474 or dstucky@sandiego.gov.

- 2. CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION: Prospective bidder(s) as well as existing contractors and suppliers are required to register with the City's EOCP. Refer to 2-17, "CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION" for details.
- **3. CITY'S RESPONSES AND ADDENDA:** The City at its option, may respond to any or all questions submitted in writing, via letter, or FAX in the form of an addendum. No oral comment shall be of any force or effect with respect to this solicitation. The changes to the Contract Documents through addendum are made effective as though originally issued with the Bid. The Bidders shall acknowledge the receipt of Addenda on the form provided for this purpose in the Bid.
- 4. CITY'S RIGHTS RESERVED: The City reserves the right to cancel the Invitation to Bids at any time, and further reserves the right to reject submitted Bids, without giving any reason for such action, at its sole discretion and without liability. Costs incurred by the Bidder(s) as a result of preparing Bids under the Invitation to Bid shall be the sole responsibility of each bidder. The Invitation to Bid creates or imposes no obligation upon the City to enter a contract.
- **5. CONTRACT PRICING FORMAT:** This solicitation is for a Lump Sum contract with Unit Price provisions as set forth in the Bid Proposal Form(s), Volume 2 unless specified otherwise such as as-needed contracts e.g., GRC in the Contract Documents.
- 6. SUBMITTAL OF "OR EQUAL" ITEMS: See 4-1.6, "Trade Names or Equals."
- 7. AWARD PROCESS: The Award of this contract is contingent upon the Contractor's compliance with all conditions precedent to Award, including the submittal of acceptable insurance and surety bonds pursuant to San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3007.

If the responsible Bid does not exceed the City's engineering estimate, the City will, in most cases, prepare contract documents for execution within 3 weeks of the date of the Bid opening and award the Contract within 5 Working Days of receipt of properly executed Contract, bond, and insurance documents.

This contract is deemed to be awarded, and effective, only upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or designee of the City.

- **8. SUBCONTRACT LIMITATIONS:** The Bidder's attention is directed to Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Section 2-3, "SUBCONTRACTS" which requires the Contractor to perform not less than the amount therein stipulated with its own forces. Failure to comply with these requirements may render the Bid **non-responsive** and ineligible for award.
- **9. AVAILABILITY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:** Contract Documents may be obtained by visiting the City's website: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip/services/consultcontract/advertising.shtml</u>. Plans and Specifications for this contract are also available for review in the office of the City Clerk or Public Works Contracting Group.
- **10. QUESTIONS:** Questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents as related to the scope of Work and of technical nature shall be directed to the Contract Specialist prior to Bid opening. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the City in response to such questions will be issued by Addenda which will be uploaded to the City's online bidding service. For Minor Construction Contracts, the City will notify all parties recorded by the City as having received the Contract Documents that an addendum has been issued regarding this procurement.

The Director (or designee), of the Public Works Department is the officer responsible for opening, examining, and evaluating the competitive Bids submitted to the City for the acquisition, construction and completion of any public improvement except when otherwise set forth in these documents. All questions related to this procurement action shall be addressed to the Public Works Contracting Group, Attention Contract Specialist (whose name can be found on the cover of this document), 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, California, 92101, Telephone No. (619) 236-6000.

Questions received less than 14 days prior to the date for opening of Bids may not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. It is the Bidder's responsibility to become informed of any addenda that have been issued and to include all such information in its Bid.

- 11. ELIGIBLE BIDDERS: No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make, file, or be interested in more than 1 Bid for the same work unless alternate Bids are called for. A person, firm or corporation who has submitted a sub-proposal to a Bidder, or who has quoted prices on materials to a Bidder, is not hereby disqualified from submitting a sub-proposal or quoting prices to other Bidders or from submitting a Bid in its own behalf.
- **12. SAN DIEGO BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE:** All Contractors, including Subcontractors, not already having a City of San Diego Business Tax Certificate for the work contemplated shall secure the appropriate certificate from the City Treasurer, Civic Center Plaza, first floor, before the Contract can be executed.

**13. PROPOSAL FORMS:** Bid shall be made only upon the Bidding Documents i.e., Proposal form attached to and forming a part of the specifications. The signature of each person signing shall be in longhand.

The entire specifications for the bid package do not need to be submitted with the bid. Bidder shall complete and submit, only, all pages in the "Bidding Document" Section (see Volume 2) as their Bid per the schedule given under "Required Documents Schedule," (see Volume 1). Bidder is requested to retain for their reference other portions of the Contract Documents that are not required to be submitted with the Bid.

The City may require any Bidder to furnish a statement of experience, financial responsibility, technical ability, equipment, and references.

Bids and certain other specified forms and documents shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and shall bear the title of the work and name of the Bidder and the appropriate State Contractors License designation which the Bidder holds.

Bids may be withdrawn by the Bidder prior to, but not after, the time fixed for opening of Bids.

14. BIDDERS' GUARANTEE OF GOOD FAITH (BID SECURITY): With the exception of the contracts valued \$5,000 or less, GRC and Design-Build contracts, and contracts subject to the Small and Local Business Program of \$250,000 or less e.g., ELBE contracts, each Bidder shall accompany its Bid with either a cashier's check upon some responsible bank, or a check upon such bank properly certified or an approved corporate surety bond payable to the City of San Diego, for an amount of not less than 10% of the aggregate sum of the Bid, which check or bond, and the monies represented thereby shall be held by the City as a guarantee that the Bidder, if awarded the contract, will in good faith enter into such contract and furnish the required final bonds.

The Bidder agrees that in case of Bidder's refusal or failure to execute this contract and give required final bonds, the money represented by a cashier's or certified check shall remain the property of the City, and if the Bidder shall fail to execute this contract, the Surety agrees that it will pay to the City damages which the City may suffer by reason of such failure, not exceeding the sum of 10% of the amount of the Bid.

A Bid received without the specified bid security will be rejected as being **non-responsive**.

**15. AWARD OF CONTRACT OR REJECTION OF BIDS:** This contract may be awarded to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder (for Design-Build contracts refer to the RFP for the selection and award information). Bidders shall complete the entire Bid schedule (e.g., schedule of prices). Incomplete price schedules will be rejected as being **non-responsive**.

The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, and to waive any informality or technicality in Bids received and any requirements of these specifications as to bidding procedure.

Bidders will not be released on account of their errors of judgment. Bidders may be released only upon receipt by the City from the Bidder within 3 Working Days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays, after the opening of Bids, of written notice which includes proof of honest, credible, clerical error of material nature, free from fraud or fraudulent intent, and of evidence that reasonable care was observed in the preparation of the Bid. A non-selected Bidder may protest award of the Contract to the selected Bidder by submitting a written "Notice of Intent to Protest" including supporting documentation which shall be received by Public Works Contracting Group no later than 10 days after the City's announcement of the selected Bidder or no later than 10 days from the date that the City issues notice of designation of a Bidder as non-responsible in accordance with San Diego Municipal Code Chapter 2, § 22.3029, "Protests of Contract Award."

The City of San Diego will not discriminate with regard to race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, marital status, sex or age, in the award of contracts.

Each Bid package properly executed as required by these specifications shall constitute a firm offer, which may be accepted by the City within the time specified in the Invitation to Bids.

The City reserves the right to evaluate all Bids and determine the lowest Bidder (or winner for Design-Build contracts) on the basis of any proposed alternates, additive items or options, at its discretion.

**16. BID RESULTS:** The Bid opening by the City shall constitute the public announcement of the Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts). In the event that the Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts) is subsequently deemed non-responsive or non-responsible, a public announcement will be posted in the City's web page, with the name of the newly designated Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts).

To obtain Bid results, either attend Bid opening, review the results on the City's web site, or provide a self-addressed, stamped envelope, referencing Bid number, and Bid tabulation will be mailed to you upon verification of extensions. Due to time constraints, Bid results cannot be given out over the telephone.

17. THE CONTRACT: The Bidder to whom award is made shall execute a written contract with the City of San Diego and furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 10 Working Days after receipt by Bidder of a form of contract for execution unless an extension of time is granted to the Bidder in writing.

If the Bidder takes longer than 10 Working Days to fulfill these requirements, then the additional time taken shall be added to the Bid guarantee. The Contract shall be made in the form adopted by the City, which includes the provision that no claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.

If the Bidder to whom the award is made fails to enter into the contract as herein provided, the award may be annulled and the Bidder's Guarantee of Good Faith will be subject to forfeiture. An award may be made to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder who shall fulfill every stipulation embraced herein as if it were the party to whom the first award was made.

For contracts that are not Design-Build, pursuant to the San Diego City Charter section 94, the City may only award a public works contract to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder. The City will require the Apparent Low Bidder to (i) submit information to determine the Bidder's responsibility and reliability, (ii) execute the Contract in form provided by the City, and (iii) furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 10 Working Days, unless otherwise approved by the City, in writing after the Bidder receives notification from the City, designating the Bidder as the Apparent Low Bidder and formally requesting the above mentioned items.

The award of the Contract is contingent upon the satisfactory completion of the above mentioned items and becomes effective upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or designee. If the Apparent Low Bidder does not execute the Contract or submit required documents and information, the City may award the Contract to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder who shall fulfill every condition precedent to award. A corporation designated as the Apparent Low Bidder shall furnish evidence of its corporate existence and evidence that the officer signing the Contract and bond for the corporation is duly authorized to do so.

**18. EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE OF WORK:** The Bidder shall examine carefully the Project Site, the Plans and Specifications, the GRC Unit Price Books if applicable, other materials as described in the Special Provisions, Section 2-7, and the proposal forms (e.g., Bidding Documents) therefore. The submission of a Bid or GRC Task Order Proposal shall be conclusive evidence that the Bidder has investigated and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered, as to the character, quality, and scope of Work, the quantities of materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the Bidding Documents Proposal, Plans, and Specifications.

#### **19. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE:**

a) General:

City projects are subject to City of San Diego Resolution No. R-277952 adopted on May 20, 1991. Bidders shall become aware of the provisions of Council Policy 100-17 which was established by Resolution No. R-277952. The policy applies equally to the Contractor and Subcontractors. The elements of the policy are outlined below.

b) Definitions:

"Drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a contract let by City of San Diego for the construction, maintenance, or repair of any facility or public work by an entity at which employees of the entity are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in accordance with the requirements of this section.

"Employee" means the employee of a contractor directly engaged in the performance of work pursuant to a contract as described in Section 3, "City Contractor Requirements."

"Controlled substance" means a controlled substance in schedules I through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. Sec. 812).

"Contractor" means the department, division, or other unit of a person or organization responsible to the contractor for the performance of a portion of the work under the contract.

c) ity Contractor Requirements:

Every person or organization awarded a contract or grant by the City of San Diego for the provision of services shall certify to the City that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all following:

- a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person's organization's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition.
- b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following:
  - i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
  - ii. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
  - iii. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs.
  - iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- c. Posting the statement required by subdivision (1) in a prominent place at contractor's main office. For projects large enough to necessitate a construction trailer at the job site, the required signage would also be posted at the Site.

The Contractor shall include in each subcontract agreement language which indicates the Subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions a) through c) above. The Contractors and Subcontractors shall be individually responsible for their own drug-free workplace programs.

Note: The requirements of a drug-free awareness program can be satisfied by periodic tailgate sessions covering the various aspects of drug-abuse education. Although an in-house employee assistance program is not required, contractors should be able to provide a listing of drug rehabilitation and counseling programs available in the community at large.

Questions about the City's Drug-free Workplace Policy shall be referred to the Contract Specialist, Public Works Contracting Group.

#### 20. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:

- a) General: City projects are subject to City of San Diego Resolution No. R-282153 adopted on June 14, 1993. The Bidders shall become aware of the provisions of Council Policy 100-04 which was established by Resolution No. R-282153. The policy applies equally to the Contractor and all Subcontractors. The elements of the policy are outlined below.
- b) Definitions:

"Qualified individual with a disability" means an individual with a disability who satisfies the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related requirements of the employment position such individual holds or desires, and who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of such position. "Employee" means the employee of the Contractor directly engaged in the performance of Work.

- c) The City Requirements: Every person or organization entering into a contractual agreement with or receiving a grant from the City of San Diego shall certify to the City of San Diego that it will comply with the ADA by adhering to all of the provisions of the ADA listed below.
  - i. The Contractor shall not discriminate against qualified persons with disabilities in any aspects of employment, including recruitment, hiring, promotions, conditions and privileges of employment, training, compensation, benefits, discipline, layoffs, and termination of employment.
  - ii. No qualified individual with a disability may be excluded on the basis of disability, from participation in, or be denied the benefits of services, programs, or activities by the Contractor or Subcontractors providing services for the City.
  - iii. The Contractor shall post a statement addressing the requirements of the ADA in a prominent place at the worksite. The Contractor shall include in each subcontract agreement, language which indicates the Subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions (a) through (c) inclusive of Section 3. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall be individually responsible for their own ADA employment programs. Questions about the City's ADA Policy should be referred to the Contract Administrator.
- 21. CONTRACTOR STANDARDS PLEDGE OF COMPLIANCE: This contract is subject to City of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224 as amended 11/24/08 by ordinance O-19808. Bidders shall become aware that the requirements apply to Contractors and Subcontractors for contracts greater than \$50,000 in value.

Upon award, amendment, renewal, or extension of this contract, the Contractors shall complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that they complied with the requirements of this section.

The Contractors shall ensure that their Subcontractors whose subcontracts are greater than \$50,000 in value complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that they complied with the requirements of this section. Subcontractors may access the Pledge of Compliance at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/pdf/contractor\_standards\_questionnaire.pdf.

The Contractors shall include in each subcontract agreement, language which requires Subcontractors to abide by the provisions of City of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224. A sample provision is as follows:

"Compliance with San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224: Subcontractor acknowledges that it is familiar with the requirements of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224 ("Contractor Standards"), and agrees to comply with requirements of that section. The Subcontractor further agrees to complete the Pledge of Compliance, incorporated herein by reference." 22. NOTICE OF LABOR COMPLIANCE PROGRAM APPROVAL: The City of San Diego received initial approval as a Labor Compliance Program on August 11, 2003. The Labor Compliance Program Manual is available at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/laborcompliance/#manual.

The limited exemption from prevailing wages pursuant to Labor Code §1771.5(a) does not apply to contracts under jurisdiction of the Labor Compliance Program. Inquiries, questions, or assistance about the Labor Compliance Program should be directed to: Equal Opportunity Contracting Program, 1200 Third Ave., Suite 200 MS56P, San Diego, CA 92101, Tel. 619-236-6000.

**23. PAYROLL RECORDS:** The Contractor's attention is directed to the City of San Diego Labor Compliance Program, Section IV, pages 4-7, and the State of California Labor Code §§ 1771.5(b) and 1776 (Stats. 1978, Ch. 1249). These require, in part, that the Contractor and Subcontractors maintain and furnish to the City, at a designated time, a certified copy of each weekly payroll containing a statement of compliance signed under penalty of perjury.

The Contractor and Subcontractors shall submit weekly certified payrolls online via Prism® i.e., the City's web-based labor compliance program. Instructions on how to use the system will be provided to the Contractor after the award.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance with these provisions by Subcontractors. The City shall withhold contract payments when payroll records are delinquent or inadequate, or when it is established after investigation that underpayment has occurred.

- 24. APPRENTICES ON PUBLIC WORKS: The Contractor shall abide by the requirements of §§1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the State of California Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices by contractors and subcontractors performing public works contracts.
- **25. EQUAL BENEFITS:** This contract is subject to the City's Equal Benefits Ordinance (EBO), Chapter 2, Article 2, Division 43 of the San Diego Municipal Code (SDMC).

In accordance with the EBO, Bidders shall certify they will provide and maintain equal benefits as defined in SDMC §22.4302 for the duration of the Contract (SDMC §22.4304(f)). Failure to maintain equal benefits is a material breach of the Contract (SDMC §22.4304(e)). The Contractor shall notify employees of their equal benefits policy at the time of hire and during open enrollment periods and shall post a copy of the following statement in an area frequented by employees:

"During the performance of a contract with the City of San Diego, this employer will provide equal benefits to its employees with spouses and its employees with domestic partners."

The Contractor shall give the City access to documents and records sufficient for the City to verify the contractors are providing equal benefits and otherwise complying with EBO requirements.

Full text of the EBO and the Rules Implementing the Equal Benefits Ordinance are posted on the City's website at www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/ or can be requested from the Equal Benefits Program at (619) 533-3948.

26. LIMITED COMPETITION: When designated as restricted competition on the cover page, this contract may only be bid by the Contractors on the approved SLBE-ELBE Construction Contractors List. For information regarding the SLBE-ELBE Construction Program and registration go to the City's web site: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov</u>.

#### **27. PRE-AWARD ACTIVITIES:**

<u>Pre-award Submittals</u> - The Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) shall provide the information required within the time specified in "Required Documents," of this bid package. Failure to provide the information within the time specified may result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive**.

If the Bid is rejected as non-responsive, the Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) shall forfeit the Bid Security required under Invitation to Bids, of this bid package. The decision that the Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) is non-responsive for failure to provide the information required within the time specified shall be at the sole discretion of the City.

## CONTRACT FORMS AGREEMENT

## **CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT**

This contract is made and entered into between THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation, herein called "City", and <u>SC Valley Engineering, Inc.</u>\_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_\_, herein called "Contractor" for construction of <u>WATER GROUP JOB 941</u>; Bid No. <u>K-13-1048-DBB-3</u>; in the amount of <u>Five Hundred Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty</u> <u>Dollars and 00/100 (\$516,280.00)</u>, which is comprised of the Base Bid.

IN CONSIDERATION of the payments to be made hereunder and the mutual undertakings of the parties hereto, City and Contractor agree as follows:

- 1. The following are incorporated into this contract as though fully set forth herein:
  - (a) The attached Faithful Performance and Payment Bonds.
  - (b) The attached Proposal included in the Bid documents by the Contractor.
  - (c) That certain documents entitled <u>WATER GROUP JOB 941</u>, on file in the office of Public Works Department as Document No. <u>B-11037</u>, as well as all matters referenced therein.
- 2. Contractor shall perform and be bound by all the terms and conditions of this contract and in strict conformity therewith shall perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner **WATER GROUP JOB 941**; Bid No. **K-13-1048-DBB-3**, San Diego, California.
- 3. For such performances, the City shall pay to Contractor the amounts set forth at the times and in the manner and with such additions or deductions as are provided for in this contract, and Contractor shall accept such payment in full satisfaction of all claims incident to such performances.
- 4. No claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.
- 5. This contract is effective as of the date that the Mayor or designee signs the agreement.

## **CONTRACT FORMS (continued)** AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is signed by the City of San Diego, acting by and through its Mayor or designee authorizing such execution.

## THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

## APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

By

Print Name: W. Downs Prior, Principal Contract Specialist

11/29/ Date:

Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney

Βv

Print Name: Deputy City Attorney

Date:

**CONTRACTOR** Bv Print Names

Title:

JN 33 30 Date:

City of San Diego License No.: <u>B200100</u>5583

State Contractor's License No.: 1024559 A

## CONTRACT FORMS (continued) PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

#### FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND:

<u>SC Valley Engineering, Inc.</u>, a corporation, as principal, and <u>The Hanover Insurance Company</u>, a corporation authorized to do business in the State of California, as Surety, hereby obligate themselves, their successors and assigns, jointly and severally, to The City of San Diego a municipal corporation in the sum of <u>Five Hundred Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Dollars and 00/100 (\$516,280.00)</u>, for the faithful performance of the annexed contract, and in the sum of <u>Five Hundred Sixteen Thousand</u> <u>Two Hundred Eighty Dollars and 00/100 (\$516,280.00)</u>, for the benefit of laborers and materialmen designated below.

### Conditions:

4

If the Principal shall faithfully perform the annexed contract <u>WATER GROUP JOB 941</u>; Bid No. <u>K-13-1048-DBB-3</u>, San Diego, California then the obligation herein with respect to a faithful performance shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

If the Principal shall promptly pay all persons, firms and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the execution of this contract, and shall pay all amounts due under the California Unemployment Insurance Act then the obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

The obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall inure to the benefit of all persons, firms and corporations entitled to file claims under the provisions of Chapter 3 of Division 5 of Title I of the Government Code of the State of California or under the provisions of Section 3082 et seq. of the Civil Code of the State of California.

Changes in the terms of the annexed contract or specifications accompanying same or referred to therein shall not affect the Surety's obligation on this bond, and the Surety hereby waives notice of same.

Contract Forms (Rev. June 2011) Water Group Job 941

## **CONTRACT FORMS** (continued) PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

The Surety shall pay reasonable attorney's fees should suit be brought to enforce the provisions of this bond.

B

October 17 Dated ,2012

Approved as to Form and Legality

S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. Principal Bν

Printed Name of Person Signing for Principal

Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney By

Deputy City Attorney

Surety

The Handver Insurance Company

ney-in-fact Robert P. Dole, Attorney-in-Fact

10509 Vista Sorrento Parkway, #310 Local Address of Surety

San Diego, CA 92121

Local Address (City, State) of Surety

858-200-4101

Local Telephone No. of Surety

Premium \$ 5,251.00

Bond No. 1009856 **Executed in Triplicate** 

Approved:

W. Downs Prior, Principal Contract Specialist

11/29/12

Contract Forms (Rev. June 2011)

25 | Page

Water Group Job 941

## • • •

#### THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

#### POWERS OF ATTORNEY CERTIFIED COPY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY and MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY, both being corporations organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan, do hereby constitute and appoint

#### Nicki Edwards, John T. Dole, Daniel P. Dole and/or Robert P. Dole

of Bonita, CA and each is a true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-fact to sign, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver for, and on its behalf, and as its act and deed any place within the United States, or, if the following line be filled in, only within the area therein designated

any and all bonds, recognizances, undertakings, contracts of indemnity or other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, as follows:

#### Any such obligations in the United States, not to exceed Ten Million and No/100 (\$10,000,000) in any single instance

and said companies hereby ratify and confirm all and whatsoever said Attorney(s)-in-fact may lawfully do in the premises by virtue of these presents. These appointments are made under and by authority of the following Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Companies which resolutions are still in effect:

"RESOLVED, That the President or any Vice President, in conjunction with any Vice President, be and they are hereby authorized and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-fact of the Company, in its name and as its acts, to execute and acknowledge for and on its behalf as Surety any and all bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, waivers of citation and all other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, with power to attach thereto the seal of the Company. Any such writings so executed by such Attorneys-in-fact shall be as binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company in their own proper persons." (Adopted October 7, 1981 - The Hanover Insurance Company; Adopted April 14, 1982 -Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company; Adopted September 7, 2001 - Citizens Insurance Company of America)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY, MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY and CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA have caused these presents to be sealed with their respective corporate seals, duly attested by two Vice Presidents, this **11th** day of **November 2011**.



THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

5M JA Robert Thomas, Vice President Vice P

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ) COUNTY OF WORCESTER )ss.

On this **11th** day of **November 2011** before me came the above named Vice Presidents of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described herein, and acknowledged that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the corporate seals of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, respectively, and that the said corporate seals and their signatures as officers were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the authority and direction of said Corporations.



とつかびのバー

Barbara A. Garlick, Notary Public My Commission Expires September 21, 2018

I, the undersigned Vice President of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Companies, and do hereby further certify that the said Powers of Attorney are still in force and effect.

This Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of Directors of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America.

"RESOLVED, That any and all Powers of Attorney and Certified Copies of such Powers of Attorney and certification in respect thereto, granted and executed by the President or any Vice President in conjunction with any Vice President of the Company, shall be binding on the Company to the same extent as if all signatures therein were manually affixed, even though one or more of any such signatures thereon may be facsimile." (Adopted October 7, 1981 - The Hanover Insurance Company; Adopted April 14, 1982 - Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company; Adopted September 7, 2001 - Citizens Insurance Company of America)

GIVEN under my hand and the seals of said Companies, at Worcester, Massachusetts, this 17 day of October, 2012.

THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

arrs an Æ

Gleńn Margosian, Vice President

## CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

i i sa

State of California	
State of California	
County of San Diego	
On 10/17/2012 before me, Nicki Edwa	ards, Notary Public,
personally appeared Robert P. Dole,	who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(iee), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. I certify under the PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
	Cantornia that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
OFFICIAL SEAL NICKI EDWARDS NOTARY PUBLIC-CALIFOR COMM. NO. 183% SAN DIEGO COUNTY MY COMM. EXP. MAR. 31, 2	WITNESS my hand and official seal.
	<b>OPTIONAL</b>
Though the data below is not required by fraudulent reattachment of this form.	law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent
CAPACITY CLAIMED BY S	IGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT
☐ INDIVIDUAL ☐ CORPORATE OFFICER	
<ul> <li>□ PARTNER(S)</li> <li>□ L</li> <li>△ ATTORNEY-IN-FACT</li> <li>□ TRUSTEE(S)</li> <li>□ GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR</li> <li>OTHER:</li> </ul>	JMITED
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IE The Hanover Insurance Company	S)



×.

t. • • •

## **CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION**

### DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

## **PROJECT TITLE:**

## WATER GROUP JOB 941

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-17 regarding Drug-Free Workplace as outlined in INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS, "Drug-Free Workplace", of the project specifications, and that;

Valneenna 10 (Name under which business is conducted)

has in place a drug-free workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions a) through c) of the policy as outlined.

Signed 1 Printed Name Title

## **CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION**

## AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

### PROJECT TITLE:\_\_\_\_\_

## WATER GROUP JOB 941

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-4 regarding the American With Disabilities Act (ADA) outlined in the INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS, "American With Disabilities Act", of the project specifications, and that;

(Name under which business is conducted)

has in place a workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of the policy as outlined.

Signed Printed Name Title

## **CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION**

## **CONTRACTOR STANDARDS – PLEDGE OF COMPLIANCE**

## PROJECT TITLE: WATER GROUP JOB 941

I further certify that each of the Contractor's subcontractors whose subcontracts are greater than \$50,000 in value has completed a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury of having complied with City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3224.

Day of \_U Dated this Signed Printed Name Title

## AFFIDAVIT OF DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, on the \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, the undersigned entered into and executed a contract with the City of San Diego, a municipal corporation, for:

#### WATER GROUP JOB 941

(Project)

as particularly described in said contract and identified as Bid No. <u>K-13-1048-DBB-3</u>; SAP No. (WBS/IO/CC) <u>B-11037</u>; and WHEREAS, the specification of said contract requires the Contractor to affirm that "all brush, trash, debris, and surplus materials resulting from this project have been disposed of in a legal manner"; and WHEREAS, said contract has been completed and all surplus materials disposed of:

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the final payment by the City of San Diego to said Contractor under the terms of said contract, the undersigned Contractor, does hereby affirm that all surplus materials as described in said contract have been disposed of at the following location(s)

and that they have been disposed of according to all applicable laws and regulations.

Dated this \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_ Contractor

by

ATTEST:

State of \_\_\_\_\_ County of

On this \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_, before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_

known to me to be the \_\_\_\_\_\_ Contractor named in the foregoing Release, and whose name is subscribed thereto, and acknowledged to me that said Contractor executed the said Release.

Notary Public in and for said County and State

## SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS (SSP)

THESE SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS CONFORM TO THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION (THE GREENBOOK) CURRENTLY ADOPTED BY THE CITY, INCLUDING ITS CURRENT SUPPLEMENT AMENDMENTS (CITY SUPPLEMENTS INCLUDED IN THE WHITEBOOK), EXCEPT FOR THE FOLLOWING:

## **STYLE OF SPECIFICATIONS**

The City is gradually standardizing the style and language of the standard specifications for the public works construction. The new style and language follows the Federal guidelines for "Plain Language" to the extent possible.

The use of this new style does not change the meaning of a specification not yet using this style. Where used in the Contract Documents, statement or command type phrases (i.e., active voice and imperative mood) refer to and are directed at the Bidder or Contractor as applicable. The specifications are written to the Bidder before award and the Contractor after. Before award, interpret sentences written in the imperative mood as starting with "The Bidder must" and interpret "you" as "the Bidder" and "your" as "the Bidder's." After award, interpret sentences written in the imperative mood as starting with "The Contractor" and "your" as "the Contractor sentences written in the imperative mood as starting with "The Contractor" and "your" as "the Contractor" and "your" as "the Contractor's." Similarly, interpret "we" and "us" as "the City" and "our" as "the City's."

#### PART 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

## SECTION 1 – TERMS, DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, UNITS OF MEASURE, AND SYMBOLS

#### **1-2 TERMS AND DEFINITIONS.**

**Agency** – ADD the following:

Regulatory activities handled by the City of San Diego Developmental Services, Fire and Planning Departments, or any other City Department are not subject to the responsibilities of the City under this contract.

**Contract Documents** – To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Agreement, Addendum, Invitation to Bids, Instructions to Bidders, special notice page, funding agency provisions, Bid and documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-bid documentation submitted prior to the Notice of Award when attached as an exhibit to the Contract, Bonds, permits from jurisdictional regulatory agencies, Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP), City's EOCP Requirements, City Supplement, Plans, Standard Plans, Construction Documents, Reference Specifications listed in the Invitation to Bids or the RFP for Design-Build contracts, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), Statement of Qualifications (SOQ), Request for Proposals (RFP), modifications issued after the execution of the Contract e.g., Change Orders, Construction Manager At Risk's Guaranteed Maximum Price including written qualifications, assumptions and conditions thereto and Pre-construction Services Agreement.

**ADD:** Limited Notice To Proceed – A written notice given from the City to the Contractor that authorizes the Contractor to start a limited amount of work that is not Construction Work, such as finalizing subcontract agreements, ordering materials, mobilization, furnishing a field office, and any other preliminary work done prior to performing Construction Work.

**Notice of Completion (NOC)** – ADD the following:

See California Civil Code section 3093.

**Samples** - Physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the Work will be evaluated.

Normal Working Hours - To the City Supplement, ADD the following:

The Normal Working Hours shall be 8:30 AM to 3:30 PM.

**Certificate of Compliance** – To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**Certificate of Compliance** - A written document signed and submitted by a supplier or manufacturer that certifies that the material or assembled material supplied to the Work site complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

## SECTION 2 - SCOPE AND CONTROL OF WORK

**2-1.2.2 Joint Venture Contractors.** To the City Supplement, last paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Joint Venture shall designate an on-site representative and an alternate in writing. The on-site representative and the alternate shall have the full authority to bind all Joint Venture partners.

The Joint Venture shall provide a copy of the Joint Venture agreement and the Joint Venture license to the City within 10 Working Days after receipt by the Bidder of Contract forms.

## 2-3.1.2 Subcontractor List. ADD the following:

For Extra Work, the Contractor shall submit Form CC10, "CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER (CCO)" with each CCO proposal. Form CC10 is available for download from the EOCP site at: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/pdf/cc10.pdf</u>

**2-3.2 Self Performance.** DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Contractor shall perform, with its own organization, Contract work amounting to at least **50 percent** of the base bid alone or base bid and any additive or deductive alternate(s) that together when added or deducted form the basis of determining the Apparent Low Bidder as specified. The self performance percentage requirement will be waived for contracts when a "B" License is required or allowed.

## 2-3.3 Status of Subcontractors. ADD the following:

With every request for payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a breakdown showing monthly and cumulative amounts of the Work performed under Change Order by the Contractor and the Subcontractors. The reporting format shall be approved by the Engineer.

**2-3.4 Subcontract Requirements.** To the City Supplement, ADD the following paragraph:

The Contractor shall ensure that all of its Subcontractors are licensed at the time of the execution of their subcontract agreements. In the event a Subcontractor is not properly licensed, the Contractor shall cease payment to Subcontractor for all work performed when the Subcontractor was improperly licensed. Any payment made by the Contractor to a Subcontractor for work performed when the Subcontractor was unlicensed shall be returned to the City.

Where the Contract Documents require that a particular product be installed or applied by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, it is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure the Subcontractor or Supplier employed for such work is approved by the manufacturer.

**2-5.2 Precedence of Contract Documents.** To the Cit Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**2-5.2 Precedence of Contract Documents..** If there is a conflict between any of the Contract Documents, the document highest in the order of precedence shall control. The order of precedence, from highest to lowest, shall be as follows:

- 1) Permits (i.e., issued by jurisdictional regulatory agencies)
- 2) Change Orders and Supplemental Agreements; whichever occurs last
- 3) Contract and Agreement
- 4) Addenda
- 5) Bid (e.g., price Proposal for Design-Build contracts)
- 6) Request for Proposal (RFP)
- 7) Invitation to Bid
- 8) Instruction to Bidders
- 9) Request for Qualifications (RFQ)
- 10) Special Provisions (i.e., City's EOCP Requirements, City Supplement, and Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP))
- 11) Plans
- 12) Construction Documents (for Design-Build contracts)
- 13) Standard Drawings
- 14) Reference Specifications (e.g., GREENBOOK)
- 15) Technical Proposal (for Design-Build contracts)
- 16) Statement of Qualifications (SOQ)

When additional requirements by the funding sources are physically or by reference incorporated in the Contract Documents, the funding source's requirements shall govern **unless specified otherwise**.

Figured dimensions shall take precedence over scaled dimensions. Detailed drawings shall take precedence over general drawings.

**2-5.3.1 General.** DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

When required by the Contract Documents or when requested by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide the submittals as specified in 2-5.3.2, 2-5.3.3, and 2-5.3.4 to the Engineer. Materials shall neither be furnished nor fabricated, nor shall any work for which submittals are required be performed before the required submittals have been reviewed and accepted by the Engineer. The payment for the submittals shall be included in the various Bid items. Neither review nor acceptance of submittals by the Engineer shall relieve the Contractor from responsibility for errors, omissions, or deviations from the Contract Documents, unless such deviations were specifically called to the attention of the Engineer in the letter of transmittal. The Contractor shall be responsible for the correctness of the submittals.

The Contractor shall allow a minimum of 20 working days for review of submittals unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions. Each submittal shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal.
#### **2-5.4.1 General.** ADD the following:

Source Identification e.g., RFI numbers and Change Order numbers as required to identify the source of the change to the Contract Documents shall be noted.

#### 2-5.4.2 Asset Specific Red-lines. ADD the following:

h) Slurry Seal and Asphalt Overlay Red-Lines: The Contractor shall clearly record on the City provided forms in MS Excel format the actual dates and quantity of each Bid item applied to each street segment and comments regarding each segment. The Contractor shall record reasons if no work is performed.

#### 2-6 WORK TO BE DONE. ADD the following:

In accordance with the provisions of California Law, the Contractor shall possess or require the Subcontractor(s) to possess valid appropriate license(s) for the Work being performed.

#### 2-10 AUTHORITY OF BOARD AND ENGINEER. ADD the following:

Regulating agencies of the City, such as Developmental Services, Fire and Planning Departments, enforce Legal Requirements and standards. These enforcement activities are not subject to the responsibilities of the Engineer under this Agreement.

#### **2-11 INSPECTION.** ADD the following:

The City may utilize field inspectors to assist the Engineer during construction in observing performance of the Contractor. The inspector is for the purpose of assisting the Engineer and shall not be confused with an inspector with a City regulatory agency or with a Special Inspector.

Code compliance testing (including all Geotechnical requirements) and inspections required by codes or ordinances, or by a plan approval authority, shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid by the Contractor, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.

The Contractor's quality control testing and inspections shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor and paid by the Contractor included in the Bid price.

## **2-14.3 Coordination.** ADD the following:

Other adjacent City project(s) is(are) scheduled for construction for the same time period in the vicinity of Ridgeview Drive. See Appendix "G" for approximate location. TheWork shall be coordinated with the adjacent project(s) as listed below:

1. Sewer Group 787, Regan Owen, Project Manager, (619) 533-5205.

The Contractor shall coordinate traffic control with the Contractors for the other project(s) and shall minimize the impact to the community. Prior to the start of construction the Contractor shall submit its plan coordination, in accordance with 2-5.3, "Submittals." Payment for coordination shall be included in various bid items.

**ADD: 2-17 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION.** The Contractor, Subcontractors, and Suppliers shall register with the City's EOCP via Prism<sup>®</sup> i.e., the City's web-based contract compliance portal at: <u>https://pro.prismcompliance.com/contractor/plugins/pages/contractormenu.aspx</u>.

The Contractor shall ensure that proposed Subcontractors and Suppliers have completed the registration prior to Notice of Intent to Award. If the Contractor fails to have its Subcontractors and Suppliers registered after the NTP has been issued, the City will withhold a minimum of 10% in addition to the Retention from all invoices submitted until the Contractor and all listed Subcontractors and Suppliers are properly registered in PRISM.

#### SECTION 3 – CHANGES IN WORK

**3-3.2.2 Basis for Establishing Costs.** To the City Supplement, a) Labor, first and second paragraphs, DELETE in their entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The City reserves the right to request financial records of salaries for an employee, wages, bonuses and deductions to substantiate the actual cost of labor certified by a California licensed Certified Public Accountant. The Contractor shall use the City provided form i.e., "PUBLIC WORKS PAYROLL REPORTING FORM" which is available at http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/pdf/payrollreport.pdf to list the labor rates of its personnel and Subcontractors who work on this Project. An initial submittal shall be made prior to NTP.

The payment for payroll records shall be included in the various Bid item unless a separate Bid item has been provided.

#### SECTION 4 - CONTROL OF MATERIALS

**4-1.3.1 General.** First paragraph, ADD the following:

Other standard items or materials typically accepted by Certificate of Compliance shall not require inspection at the source unless specified in the Special Provisions. For a list of these items or materials, the Contractor may refer to the Contract Documents.

**4-1.3.5 Special Inspections.** To the City Supplement, ADD the following:

Special Inspection and testing by the Special Inspectors shall meet the minimum requirements of the prevailing Codes and by the City's Development Services Department (DSD) and reference in <a href="http://www.sandiego.gov/development-services/industry/special.shtml">http://www.sandiego.gov/development-services/industry/special.shtml</a>

**4-1.5 Certificates of Compliance.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

4-1.5 Certificates of Compliance. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Certificates of Compliance shall be furnished to the Engineer prior to the use of any material or assembled material for which these Specifications so require or if so required by the Engineer.

The Engineer may waive the materials testing requirements of the Specifications and accept a Certificate of Compliance. Manufacturing test data may be required by the Engineer to be included with the submittal.

Materials used on the basis of a Certificate of Compliance may be sampled and tested at any time. The submission of a Certificate of Compliance shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for incorporating material in the Work which conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents, and any material not conforming to the requirements will be subject to rejection whether in place or not.

When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems or equipment is required by the Contract Documents, the City shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications.

**4-1.6 Trade Names or Equals.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Whenever materials or equipment are indicated in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function, and quality required. Unless stated otherwise, materials or equipment of other Suppliers may be accepted if sufficient information is submitted to the Engineer for review to determine whether the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to that named.

- a) The Contractor shall submit its list of proposed substitutions for "an equal" ("or equal") item(s) no later than 10 Working Days after the determination of the Apparent Low Bidder and on a City form when provided by the City.
- b) The request for substitution shall include the following information:
  - i. Whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents to adopt the design to the proposed substitute.
  - ii. Whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.
  - iii. All variations of the proposed substitute from the items originally specified will be identified.
  - iv. Available maintenance, repair, and replacement service requirements. The manufacturer shall have a local service agency within 50 miles of the site which maintains properly trained personnel and adequate spare parts and is able to respond and complete repairs within 24 hours.
  - v. Certification that the proposed substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, and be similar and of equal substance to that indicated, and be suited to the same use as that specified.
- c) There is no guaranteed time frame for the City's review of the substitution requests.
- d) The burden of proof as to the type, function, and quality of any such substitute product, material or equipment shall be upon the Contractor. The Engineer may require at the Contractor's expense additional data about the proposed substitute.
- e) If the Engineer takes no exceptions to the proposed substitution, it shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for the efficiency, sufficiency, quality, and performance of the substitute material or equipment, in the same manner and degree as the material and equipment specified by name.
- f) The lack of action(s) on the Engineer's side within the Contractor's requested time shall not constitute acceptance of the substitution.
- g) Acceptance by the Engineer of a substitute item shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents.
- h) For the substitution review process or to have materials listed on the AML, refer to the AML standard review process.
- i) The Bid submittal shall be based on the material and equipment specified by name in the Contract. If the proposal is rejected by the Engineer, the Contractor shall not be entitled to either an extension in Contract Time, increase in the Contract Price, or both.
- As applicable, no Shop Drawing or Working Drawing submittals shall be made for a \*substitute item nor shall any substitute item be ordered, installed, or utilized without the Engineer's prior written.
- k) The Contractor shall reimburse the City for the charges of the Engineer for evaluating each proposed substitute.
- 1) For Design-Build contracts, one copy of all designer reviewed submittals shall be provided to the Engineer.

#### SECTION 6 - PROSECUTION, PROGRESS AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK

**6-1.2 Commencement of Work.** To the GREENBOOK and the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Unless specified otherwise, construction shall start within 5 Working Days after NTP and be diligently prosecuted to completion within the Contract Time. The Contractor shall not start any construction activity at the Site until the Pre-construction Meeting is held and the NTP has been issued by the Engineer.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the City may delay the NTP as follows:

- a) Up to 5 Working Days from the Pre-construction Meeting, or
- b) Up to 40 Working Days from the Limited NTP for the preparation, submittal, obtaining approval for and filing of the PRDs in accordance with 801, "STORM WATER POLLUTION CONTROL," or
- c) Up to 60 Working Days from the Limited NTP for the preparation, submittal, and approval of the TCP on "D-sheets" when specified in 7-10.2, "Traffic Control."

The Contractor shall notify SDG&E at least 10 Working Days prior to excavating within 10' of SDG&E Underground High Voltage Transmission Power Lines (i.e., 69 KV and higher).

For areas that do not require engineered TCP on D-sheets, the Contractor may at any time after the Pre-construction Meeting obtain a TCP Permit via Working Drawings or the City's over the counter process and start the Work. If the Contractor decides to commence the construction work before the completion of the D-sheet TCPs, the Contractor shall forfeit the 60 Working Days specified here. The D-sheet TCP shall be done concurrently and no additional time will be granted.

For paving Work, the Contractor shall coordinate the Work to facilitate the installation and protection of the new curb ramps and associated concrete work prior to commencing the asphalt overlay operations. The Work at a specific location shall not commence until all layouts and measurements are agreed upon by both the Contractor and the Engineer.

**ADD:** 6-1.8 Pre-construction Meeting. Within 20 Working Days from the Limited NTP the Engineer will schedule a mandatory pre-construction meeting (Pre-construction Meeting) with the Contractor. The agenda will include items such as NTP, design services and submittal and review process for Design-Build contracts, critical elements of the work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major lump sum items, payment requests and processing, environmental and community concerns, coordination with the involved utility firms, the level of record project documents required and emergency telephone numbers for all representatives involved in the course of construction.

**6-7.1 General.** To the City Supplement, ADD the following:

d) If weather condition is suitable, the Contractor shall complete each street segment within 15 Working Days from the day the slurry seal or asphalt overlay is placed. Each completed segment shall include other incidental Work items e.g., weed abatement, damaged asphalt pavement replacement, asphalt patching, resurfacing, striping, markings, raised pavement markers, and inlet markers.

**ADD:** 6-8.1 Completion. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**6-8.1 Completion.** The Contractor shall submit a written assertion that the Work has been completed. If, in the Engineer's judgment, the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Engineer will set forth in writing the date the Work was completed. This will be the date when the Contractor is relieved from responsibility to protect and maintain the Work.

**6-8.2 Acceptance.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**6-8.2 Acceptance.** Acceptance will occur after all of the requirements contained in the Contract Documents have been fulfilled. If, in the Engineer's judgment, the Contractor has fully performed the Contract, the Engineer will accept the Contractor's performance of the Contract.

**6-8.3 Warranty.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**6-8.3 Warranty.** Unless specified otherwise, the Work shall be warranted by the Contractor against defective workmanship and materials for a period of 1 year.

- a) The warranty period shall start on the date of completion of the Work as determined by the Engineer.
- b) The Contractor shall provide an unconditional warranty on all installed fiber optic cable for a minimum period of 2 years.
- c) The warranty period for the following items of the Work shall be 3 years:
  - 1. Work under Section 500 (requires Long Term Warranty Contract (LTWC))
  - 2. DWT Construction (requires manufacturer's warranty)
  - 3. LED signal modules (requires manufacturer's warranty)
- d) Private sewer pumps including the alarm panel and all other accessories. The Contractor shall provide the City and property owner a copy of the warranty. (requires manufacturer's warranty)
- e) The Contractor shall involve the manufacturer in the installation and startup as needed to secure any extended warranty required.
- f) The warranty period for specific items covered under manufacturers' or suppliers' warranties shall commence on the date they are placed into service at the direction of or as approved by the Engineer in writing.
- g) All warranties, express or implied, from Subcontractors or Suppliers, of any tier, for the work performed and materials furnished shall be assigned, in writing, to the City, and such warranties shall be delivered to the Engineer prior to acceptance of the Contractor's performance of the Contract.
- h) The Contractor shall replace or repair defective Work in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer, after notice to do so from the Engineer, and within the time specified in the notice. If the Contractor fails to make such replacement or repairs within the time specified in the notice, the City may perform the replacement or repairs at the Contractor's expense. If the Contractor fails to reimburse the City for the actual costs, the Contractor's Surety shall be liable for the cost thereof.
- i) Nothing in this warranty is intended to limit any manufacturer's warranty which provides the City with greater warranty rights than set forth in this section or the Contract Documents.
- j) These specifications are not intended to constitute a period of limitations or waiver of any other rights or remedies City may have regarding the Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents or federal or state law.
- k) The Contractor shall respond and initiate corrective action within 24 hours of notice of nonconforming Work that poses an imminent threat to person or property.

**6-9 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

MODIFY to increase the daily value from \$250 to \$1,000 for contracts with a value of over \$100,000.

#### SECTION 7 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR

#### 7-3 LIABILITY INSURANCE. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The insurance provisions herein must not be construed to limit your indemnity obligations contained in this contract.

#### ADD: 7-3.1 Policies and Procedures.

- a) You must procure the insurance described below, at your sole cost and expense, to provide coverage against claims for loss including injuries to persons or damage to property, which may arise out of or in connection with the performance of the Work by you, your agents, representatives, officers, employees or subcontractors.
- b) Insurance coverage for property damage resulting from your operations is on a replacement cost valuation. The market value will not be accepted.
- c) You must maintain this insurance for the duration of this contract and at all times thereafter when you are correcting, removing, or replacing Work in accordance with this contract. Your liabilities under this contract, e.g., your indemnity obligations, will is not deemed limited to the insurance coverage required by this contract.
- d) Payment for insurance is included in the various items of Work as bid by you, and except as specifically agreed to by the City in writing, you are not entitled to any additional payment. Do not begin any work under this contract until you have provided and the City has approved all required insurance.
- e) Policies of insurance must provide that the City is entitled to 30 days (10 days for cancellation due to non-payment of premium) prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this contract. Your failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this contract may be treated by the City as a material breach of contract.

#### ADD: 7-3.2 Types of Insurance.

#### 7-3.2.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

- a) Commercial General Liability Insurance must be written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 00 01 07 98 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.
- b) The policy must cover liability arising from premises and operations, XCU (explosions, underground, and collapse), independent contractors, products/completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, bodily injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an insured's contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract).
- c) There must be no endorsement or modification limiting the scope of coverage for either "insured vs. insured" claims or contractual liability. You must maintain the same or equivalent insurance for at least 10 years following completion of the Work.
- d) All costs of defense must be outside the policy limits. Policy coverage must be in liability limits of not less than the following:

General Annual Aggregate Limit	Limits of Liability
Other than Products/Completed Operations	\$2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit Personal Injury Limit	\$2,000,000 \$1,000,000
Each Occurrence	\$1,000,000

#### 7-3.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.

- a) You must provide a policy or policies of Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance written on the current version of the ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or later version or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad in the amount of \$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident, covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles ("Any Auto").
- b) All costs of defense must be outside the limits of the policy.

**ADD:** 7-3.3 Rating Requirements. Except for the State Compensation Insurance Fund, all insurance required by this contract as described herein must be carried only by responsible insurance companies with a rating of, or equivalent to, at least "A-, VI" by A.M. Best Company, that are authorized by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in the State, and that have been approved by the City.

**7-3.3.1 Non-Admitted Carriers.** The City will accept insurance provided by non-admitted, "surplus lines" carriers only if the carrier is authorized to do business in the State and is included on the List of Eligible Surplus Lines Insurers (LESLI list).

All policies of insurance carried by non-admitted carriers must be subject to all of the requirements for policies of insurance provided by admitted carriers described herein.

**ADD:** 7-3.4 Evidence of Insurance. Furnish to the City documents e.g., certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the insurance required herein, and furnish renewal documentation prior to expiration of this insurance. Each required document must be signed by the insurer or a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. We reserve the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required herein.

## ADD: 7-3.5 Policy Endorsements.

## 7-3.5.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance

## 7-3.5.1.1 Additional Insured.

- a) You must provide at your expense policy endorsement written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 20 10 11 85 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.
- b) To the fullest extent allowed by law e.g., California Insurance Code §11580.04, the policy must be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured.
  - 1. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is \$1,000,000 or more must include liability arising out of: (a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf, (b) Your products, (c) Your work, e.g., your completed operations performed by you or on your behalf, or (d) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.
  - 2. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is less than \$1,000,000 must include liability arising out of: (a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf, (b) Your products, or (c) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.

7-3.5.1.2 Primary and Non-Contributory Coverage. The policy must be endorsed to provide that the coverage with respect to operations, including the completed operations, if appropriate, of the Named Insured is primary to any insurance or self-insurance of the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. Further, it must provide that any insurance maintained by the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives must be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and must not contribute to it.

**7-3.5.1.3 Project General Aggregate Limit.** The policy or policies must be endorsed to provide a Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit that will apply only to the Work. Only claims payments which arise from the Work must reduce the Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit. The Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit must be in addition to the aggregate limit provided for the products-completed operations hazard.

# 7-3.5.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.

7-3.5.2.1 Additional Insured. Unless the policy or policies of Commercial Auto Liability Insurance are written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad, the policy must be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured, with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by you or on your behalf. This endorsement is limited to the obligations permitted by California Insurance Code §11580.04.

**ADD:** 7-3.6 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. You are responsible for the payment of all deductibles and self-insured retentions. Disclose deductibles and self-insured retentions to the City at the time the evidence of insurance is provided.

**ADD:** 7-3.7 Reservation of Rights. We reserve the right, from time to time, to review your insurance coverage, limits, deductibles and self-insured retentions to determine if they are acceptable to the City. We will reimburse you, without overhead, profit, or any other markup, for the cost of additional premium for any coverage requested by the Engineer but not required by this contract.

**ADD:** 7-3.8 Notice of Changes to Insurance. You must notify the City 30 days prior to any material change to the policies of insurance provided under this contract.

**ADD:** 7-3.9 Excess Insurance. Policies providing excess coverage must follow the form of the primary policy or policies e.g., all endorsements.

**7-4 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE.** DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

## 7-4.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance.

- a) In accordance with the provisions of §3700 of the California Labor Code, you must provide at its expense Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance to protect you against all claims under applicable state workers compensation laws. The City, its elected officials, and employees will not be responsible for any claims in law or equity occasioned by your failure to comply with the requirements of this section.
- b) Limits for this insurance must be not less than the following:

Workers' Compensation	Statutory Employers Liability
Bodily Injury by Accident	\$1,000,000 each accident
Bodily Injury by Disease	\$1,000,000 each employee
Bodily Injury by Disease	\$1,000,000 policy limit

c) By signing and returning this contract you certify that you are aware of the provisions of §3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code and you will comply with such provisions before commencing the Work as required by § 1861 of the California Labor Code.

7-4.1.1 Waiver of Subrogation. The policy or policies must be endorsed to provide that the insurer will waive all rights of subrogation against the City, and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives for losses paid under the terms of the policy or policies and which arise from work performed by the Named Insured for the City.

7-5 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES. To the City Supplement, DELETE item e) in its entirety.

7-8.6 Water Pollution Control. ADD the following:

- a) The Project is subject to the Storm Water Pollution control requirements listed on the Plans or as specified in these specifications.
- b) For contracts subject to Construction General Permit (CGP), the Contractor's QSD shall verify the City's assessment prior to submittal through SMARTS.
- c) The Contractor's attention is directed to Section 801, "WATER POLLUTION CONTROL" of these specifications for more information.

# **7-9 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS.** ADD the following:

In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at its discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in Contract Price or Contract Time resulting from emergency work shall be determined as provided in SECTION 3, "CHANGES IN WORK."

**7-10.1 Traffic and Access.** To the City Supplement, DELETE the agency notification listing in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Contractor shall notify Metropolitan Transit System (MTS), a minimum of 5 Working Days prior to excavation, construction, or traffic control affecting bus stops. The Contractor shall notify the remaining agencies a minimum of two 2 Working Days prior to construction activities affecting the agencies:

Fire Department Dispatch	(Street or alley closure)	(858) 573-1300
Police Department Traffic	(Street or alley closure)	(858) 495-7800
Street Division/Electrical	(Traffic signals)	(619) 527-7500
U.S. Navy	(32nd Street Naval Station)	(619) 556-1319
Underground Service Alert	(Any excavation)	(800) 422-4133
MTS	(Street Closure and Bus Stops)	(619) 238-0100 Ext 6451

**7-10.6 Traffic Plate Bridging.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Transverse or longitudinal cuts, voids, trenches, holes, and excavations in the right-of-way that cannot be properly completed within 1 Working Day shall be protected by adequately designed barricades and structural steel plates [plates] that will support legal vehicle loads in such a way as to preserve unobstructed traffic flow.

The Contractor shall secure approval, in advance, from authorities concerning the use of any bridging proposed on the Work.

Plates shall conform to the following:

- a) The trench shall be adequately shored to support the bridging and traffic loads.
- b) Plates shall be designed for HS 20-44 truck loading in accordance with Caltrans Bridge Design Specifications Manual.

c) For the minimum thickness of plates refer to Table 7-10.6(A):

Minimum Plate Thickness
1/2" (13 mm)
3/4" (19 mm)
7/8" (22 mm)
1" (25 mm)
1 1/4" (32 mm)

Table 7-10.6(A) - Trench Width / Minimum Plate Thickness

For spans greater than 5'-3" (1.6 m), a structural design shall be prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer and approved by the Engineer.

- d) Plates shall have a skid-resistant surface with a nominal Coefficient Of Friction (COF) of 0.35 as determined by California Test Method 342.
- e) Plates shall extend a minimum of 12" (300 mm) beyond the edges of the trench.
- f) Plates shall provide complete coverage to prevent any person, bicycle, motorcycle or motor vehicle from being endangered due to plate movement causing separations or gaps.
- g) Plates shall be secured against movement or displacement by using adjustable cleats, shims, welding, or other devices, and shall be installed in a manner that will minimize noise as traffic drives over them. Plates shall be installed using either Method (1) or (2):
  - i. Method 1 [For speeds greater than 45 mph (70 Km/hr)]: The pavement shall be cold planed to a depth equal to the thickness of the plate and to a width and length equal to the dimensions of the plate.
  - Method 2 [For Speeds less than 45 mph (70 Km/hr)]: Approach plate(s) and ending plate (if longitudinal placement) shall be attached to the roadway by a minimum of 2 dowels pre-drilled into the corners of the plate and drilled 2" (50 mm) into the pavement. Subsequent plates are butted to each other. Fine graded asphalt concrete shall be compacted to form ramps, maximum slope 8.5 % with a minimum 12" (305 mm) taper to cover all edges of the plates.

Alternative installation method may be submitted in accordance with 2-5.3, "Submittals" for the Engineer's approval.

- h) The Contractor shall be responsible for maintenance of the plates, shoring, and asphalt concrete ramps or any other approved device used to secure the plates. The Contractor shall immediately mobilize necessary personnel and equipment after being notified by the Engineer, the City's station 38, or a member of the public of a repair needed e.g., plate movement, noise, anchors, and asphalt ramps. Failure to respond to the emergency request within 2 hours will be grounds for the City to perform necessary repairs that will be invoiced at actual cost including overhead or \$500 per incident, whichever is greater. Failure by the Contractor to comply may result in automatic grounds suspension of permit, Contract, or both.
- i) When plates are removed, any damage to the pavement shall be repaired with fine graded asphalt concrete mix or slurry seal satisfactory to the Engineer.

Payment for traffic plate bridging shall be included in the various Bid items unless a Bid Item has been provided for steel plate bridging.

#### **SECTION 8 - FACILITIES FOR AGENCY PERSONNEL**

#### 8-2 FIELD OFFICE FACILITIES. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety.

#### PART 2 - CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

#### **SECTION 207 – PIPE**

**ADD: 207-17.2.3 Pipe Manufacturer.** Pipe, fittings, couplings, and joints as manufactured or distributed by J-M Manufacturing Company shall not be used on this contract.

**207-26.1.1 Polymer Concrete Water Meter Boxes.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Boxes and covers to be installed in traffic areas shall have a reinforced polymer concrete frame and cover designed for AASHTO H-20 traffic loading. Boxes and covers to be installed in non-traffic areas shall have reinforced polymer concrete reader lids designed for A-10 traffic loading in accordance with ASTM-C857. Traffic areas are defined as any location in which vehicular traffic is evident or highly likely under normal conditions. Non-traffic areas are locations with no vehicular traffic. Covers shall have a logo reading "PUD WATER" as well as the manufacturer's name or logo cast in the polymer concrete surface. A cover and lid selected at random shall be tested. The cover and lid shall support without failure a total vertical load of at least 1,000 pounds, when supported in a horizontal position in the meter box. The load shall be applied to the center of the lid by a cylindrical pin, 1.952" in diameter, supported on a 2-thick rubber pad.

Unless provided for as a separate Bid item, payment for Polymer Concrete Box shall be included in the Bid item for water services.

207-26.1.5 Polyvinyl Chloride Pipe 2" Only. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety.

#### **SECTION 216 – DETECTABLE WARNING TILES**

**216-1.2 Materials.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Materials for DWT specified herein shall be per the City's Approved Materials List (AML). The tiles shall have the manufacturer's logo stamped permanently on the product with identifying information such as model number and type.

- a) The Stainless Steel Cast in Place DWT shall be of 16 gauge Type 304L with an integral micro-texture non-slip surface stamped into the stainless steel plate on the top of the domes and in the field surface between the domes. It shall have an ultra violet stabilized coating.
- b) Vitrified Polymer Composite (VPC) Cast in Place DWT shall be an epoxy polymer composition with an ultra violet stabilized coating employing aluminum oxide particles in the truncated domes. VPC Product shall be provided with a 5-year manufacturer written warranty form materials and installation.
- c) For others materials and a complete listing of material physical property requirements refer to the City's AML.

#### PART 3 – CONSTRUCTION METHODS

#### SECTION 302 – ROADWAY SURFACING

**302-1.9 Traffic Signal Loop Detectors.** To the City Supplement, DELETE the second paragraph and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Traffic detector loops shall be reinstalled prior to resurfacing of the related street within 15 days from completion of all preparatory work including milling, cutting and grinding. The Contractor shall contact the City of San Diego's Street Division, Traffic Signal Maintenance at 619-527-8052 north of Interstate 8 or 619-527-8053 south of Interstate 8 to request loop layout.

**ADD:** 302-5.2 Pavement Restoration Adjacent to Trench. Pavement restoration adjacent to trench shall include the replacement of existing pavement adjacent to the proposed trench and outside the trench limits, that was previously broken or displaced.

Prior to the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall meet with the Engineer and determine the limits of the pavement to be replaced. If the Contractor does not meet with the Engineer before removing the pavement, all replacement outside the limits of the proposed trench resurfacing shall be at the Contractor's expense.

Existing pavement shall be removed in accordance with Section 300-1.3.2. Prior to pavement restoration, existing subgrade shall be prepared in accordance with 301-1, "SUBGRADE PREPARATION." If any existing unsuitable subgrade as determined by the Engineer is encountered, it shall be replaced with imported backfill in accordance with 306-1.3.7, "Imported Backfill" prior to preparation.

**302-5.2.1 Measurement and Payment.** Payment for pavement restoration adjacent to trench will be made on a square foot basis as shown in the Bid in accordance with 302-6.8, "Measurement and Payment." Unless Bid includes separate Bid item(s), the following shall be included in the payment for pavement restoration adjacent to trench:

- a) saw-cutting existing edges,
- b) removal and disposal of existing pavement,
- c) subgrade preparation including imported backfill material,
- d) form work,
- e) placement, curing, and protection of new pavement, and
- f) placing class "F" asphalt where required.

**302-6.1 General.** To the City Supplement, Last paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Prior to placing concrete, existing subgrade shall be prepared in accordance with 301-1, "SUBGRADE PREPARATION."

If any existing unsuitable subgrade, as determined by the Engineer, is encountered it shall be replaced in accordance with 300-2.2, "Unsuitable Material."

302-6.8 Measurement and payment. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety.

**303-5.10.2 Payment.** To the City Supplement, 2<sup>nd</sup> paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE the following:

Additional concrete sidewalk and curb quantities *beyond the 15'-0*" will be paid for in accordance with the Contract unit price for additional curb and additional sidewalk.

**302-13.4 Application.** To the City Supplement, DELETE the second paragraph and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Sealant shall be applied from the bottom of the crack up to the surface in a manner which does not result in sealant bridging or pockets of entrapped air. The sealant shall be applied to a slightly overfilled condition and then leveled with a squeegee. The width of sealant remaining on the surface shall not exceed 1.5" on either side of the crack. Any debris blown onto adjacent gutters, sidewalks, parkways, medians, intersections or other areas shall be removed prior to the end of the Working Day.

#### SECTION 306 – UNDERGROUND CONDUIT CONSTRUCTION

**306-1.2.14 Thrust Blocks and Anchor Blocks.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

At least 10 Working Days prior to construction of thrust blocks and anchor blocks for 16" and larger water mains, the Contractor shall excavate via potholing and expose the soil to the depth of the proposed water main at locations approved by the Engineer. The Engineer will confirm the design when shown on the Plans or will provide the design details within 10 Working Days after the Engineer has observed the exposed Site.

If there are conflicts with adjacent utilities that prohibit the installation of the concrete blocks, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer.

**306-1.6 Basis of Payment for Open Trench Installations.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Second paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The unit price bid for pipe and conduit in place shall be considered full compensation for all wyes, tees, bends, monolithic catch basin connections, and specials shown on the Plans; the removal or restoration of interfering portions of existing sewers, storm drains, and existing improvements as shown on Plans; the closing or removing of abandoned conduit and structures; the excavations of the trench; the control of ground and surface waters; the preparation of subgrade; placing, joining and testing pipe; backfilling the trench; permanent resurfacing; disposal of excess excavation; temporary resurfacing when not a Bid item; and all other work necessary to install the pipe or conduit, complete in place.

Third paragraph, after the word "backfill" ADD: "disposal of all excess excavation,"

ADD the following:

- a) The Unit Price bid for thrust and anchor blocks shall include the payment for the thrust blocks and anchor blocks for water main 16" and larger.
- b) Thrust blocks and anchor blocks for water mains 12" and smaller shall be included in the Bid item for water mains.
- c) Payment for subsurface investigations e.g., potholing for thrust blocks and anchor blocks for water mains 16" and larger shall be included in the Bid item for water main.
- d) Payment for meter assembly shall be included in the various Bid items unless a pay item has been provided for Meter Assembly. The concrete pad, fence, gate, associated piping, and coordination with City Forces shall be included in the payment for the meter assembly.
- e) Payment for valves, fire hydrant assembly and marker, fire service assembly, fire service connection, and backflow preventer shall be included in the unit price Bid items for Valves, Fire Hydrant Assembly and Marker, Fire Service Assembly and backflow preventer, Fire Service Connection, and Backflow Preventer.
- f) Removal of existing Fire Hydrant and all appurtenant work shall be included in the Bid item for Fire Hydrant and Assembly and Marker.
- g) Payment for underdrains shall be included in the unit Bid item for "Underdrains."
- h) The quantity of filter fabric to be paid for will be measured in square yards of the area covered, not including additional fabric for overlap. The quantity of permeable material to be paid will be measured by tons.

**ADD: 306-13.2 Pipe Separations.** Pipe installation shall be in compliance with the State's health standards for separation and the following:

- a) The Contractor shall notify the Engineer immediately if sewer and water pipes, whether existing or proposed, are found to be closer than 4' horizontally or 1' vertically.
- b) When a proposed water main is installed above an existing sewer main, no connection joints shall be within 8' outside the sewer main crossing on both sides.
- c) When a proposed water main is installed below an existing sewer main, no connection joints shall be within 10' of the sewer main crossing on both sides.
- d) When a proposed sewer main is installed above an existing water main, no connection joints shall be within 10' outside the water main crossing on both sides.
- e) When a proposed sewer main is installed below an existing water main, no connection joints shall be within 4' outside the water main crossing on both sides.
- f) Dimensions shall be measured from outside pipe wall to outside pipe wall.
- g) If 1' vertical separation cannot be maintained between proposed and existing utilities, 6" - 11" sand cushion per 200-1.5, "Sand" and 1" neoprene pad shall be installed as shown on Plans. The neoprene pad shall be 1" thick and wide enough to extend a minimum of 6" horizontally beyond the outside pipe wall. Neoprene pads shall have hardness between 50-70 durometers, as manufactured by Hoffmeyer Company, Industrial Rubber Supply, or approved equal. The neoprene pad shall be installed immediately below or on top of the existing utility. The sand cushion shall be placed between the neoprene pad and the proposed pipe.

**306-13.3 Utility Crossings.** To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety.

**306-14 WATER SERVICES.** To The City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

**ADD:** 306-14 WATER SERVICES. Each service shall have its own meter unless specified otherwise on the Plans. Water Services shall conform to 207-25, "POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PRESSURE PIPE" and 207-26, "PIPE APPURTENANCES."

#### PART 7 – WATER WORKS

## SECTION 700 - WORK INVOLVING THE CITY FORCES.

To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

## 700-1 CITY FORCE WORK.

#### 700-1.1 General.

- a) This subsection covers items of Work that involve coordination with and the services provided by the City Forces. The Contractor shall provide those services that are typically provided by the City Forces, in accordance with the applicable Specifications Specifications here if:
  - 1. additive alternates are awarded, or
  - 2. those services are shown on the Plans or in the Bridging Documents.
- b) The City Forces or the Contractor will be responsible for providing the residents with water service, by means of high-lining (i.e., temporary above ground supply lines), during construction as shown on the Plans.

- c) Only City Forces will isolate the water system, and perform all shutdowns by closing valves on water mains. Trial shutdowns will be performed by the City at all shutdown locations.
- d) The City's Public Utilities Department, (619) 527-7423, shall be notified by the Contractor 20 Working Days prior to beginning of Work that involves high-lining, cutting and plugging of, or making connection to the exiting water mains. The beginning of the Work shall be scheduled at the pre-construction meeting. The City is responsible for cost of the City Forces work. The Engineer will coordinate all interactions between the Contractor and the City Water Operations Division, the City Water Quality Laboratory, and other City organizations.
- e) The Work shall be done in accordance with the applicable AWWA standards and State Department of Public Health codes.
- f) The Contractor shall reconnect existing fire services and fire hydrants, after the acceptance of the new water main. The Contractor shall re-energize fire services and shall coordinate the Work with the property owner(s). The Contractor shall reconnect water services to the meters.

#### 700-1.2 High-lining.

#### 700-1.2.1 High-lining by the City Forces.

700-1.2.1.1 Furnishing Materials. If required in the Contract Documents and a separate Bid item is provided for Contractor furnished materials for City Force's highline work, the Contractor shall furnish the necessary materials for the City Forces' highline work as shown on the Plans to the City. The Contractor shall coordinate closely with the City Forces for the delivery of materials. The delivery location for furnished materials shall be determined by the City Forces. No materials shall be delivered to the City until the City Forces are ready to construct their work. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, the City will retain the high-lining materials at the end of construction if the City performs the high-lining.

700-1.2.1.2 High-Lining Removed by the Contractor. If the City Forces are not available to remove the high-lining materials, the Engineer will direct the Contractor to pickup and deliver all the City high-lining materials to Water Operations Division at: Chollas Station, 2797 Caminito Chollas, San Diego, CA 92105.

The City's Water Utilities coordinator, (619) 527-7423, shall be contacted by the Contractor 5 Working Days before delivery of the high-lining material. After removal of high-lining materials, the Contractor shall repair all trenches created for the installation of the high-line and remove all excess temporary resurfacing materials. No high-lining materials shall be removed until the City Forces have disconnected the high-line from the water system.

**700-1.2.1.3 Payment.** The payment for the furnished material for the City Force high-line work shall cover materials (i.e., fittings, valves, and hardware) including delivery and unloading. The Contractor will be paid under the Bid item for "Contractor Furnished Materials for the City Forces High-line Work."

If the Contractor requests the City Forces to high-line in excess of what is shown on the Plans, those costs for high-lining will be borne by the Contractor and billed to the Contractor. Costs will be billed at the current hourly rates (loaded) according to the schedule available for the Public Utilities Department.

If high-lining by Contractor is awarded under "Additive Alternate," payment for high-lining removed by Contractor shall be included in the unit price bid for "High-lining by the Contractor". Otherwise, if the City Forces install the high-line system and the Contractor is requested to remove the highlining and deliver at the City designated location, payment shall be in accordance with the unit price bid for "High-lining Removed by Contractor" in the base Bid. 700-1.3 Connections to the Existing System. The City Forces will be responsible for making connections and cut-ins to the existing mains as part of the base Bid.

**700-1.3.1 Connection by the City Forces.** The Contractor shall provide the following information about the main prior to connections:

- a) condition of pipes and valves,
- b) type of fitting and joint to which connection is to be made (i.e., construction), and
- c) alignment, elevation, and location of the water main and any fittings.

**700-1.3.1.1 Connection by the City Forces When the City Forces Cut and Plug the Existing Main.** The City Forces will isolate existing water main to be replaced by the Contractor. The City forces will mark location, elevation, and approximate grade of existing main on street pavement and record this information for future use. The Contractor shall consult and cooperate with the City Forces' supervisor to ensure that the information is understood and used correctly. Within the last 10' to be installed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall install bends, concrete thrust blocks, short lengths of pipe, and other appurtenances necessary to put the new installation on line and grade with the existing pipe.

700-1.3.1.2 Connection by the City Forces When the City Forces Do Not Cut and Plug the Existing Main. The Contractor shall expose the existing water main where the Work ends. The Contractor shall be responsible for determining the elevations of existing water mains and fittings. The new water main shall be at the same grade and parallel alignment as the existing main and shall be no farther away than 1' from the existing water main. At the option of the Contractor, one or two bends or pulled joints may be used to accomplish this condition.

**700-1.3.1.3 Furnishing Materials.** If required in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish the necessary materials for the City Forces' connection and cut-in work as shown on the Plans to the City. The Contractor shall coordinate closely with the City Forces for the delivery of materials. The delivery location for furnished materials shall be determined by the City Forces. No materials shall be delivered to the City until the City Forces are ready to construct the work, unless otherwise specified, in writing, by the City.

**700-1.3.1.4 Pavement Restoration for the City Forces Final Connection.** Within 10 days following the completion of the City Forces final connection work in the Project areas, the Contractor shall remove all temporary resurfacing, saw cut trench area, compact sub-grade and restore affected area with permanent resurfacing in accordance with 302-6, "Portland Cement Concrete Pavement" and City of San Diego Standard Drawings.

**700-1.3.1.5 Payment.** The payment for the furnished material for the City Force connection and cutin work shall cover materials (i.e., fittings, valves, and hardware) including delivery and unloading. The Contractor will be paid under the lump sum Bid item for "Contractor Furnished Materials for City Forces Connection and Cut-in Work for Mains 16-inch and Larger."

Traffic control, saw cutting the trench area, trench cap, and other spot repairs in the vicinity of disturbed area at each restored connection shall be included in the Bid item for Pavement Restoration for the City Forces Final Connection. Asphalt Overlay and Slurry Seal will be paid under separate Bid items.

#### ADD: PART 8 – ENVIRONMENTAL WORKS

#### **SECTION 807 – RESOURCE DISCOVERIES**

**ADD:** 807-1.1 Environmental Document. The City of San Diego Environmental Analysis Section (EAS) of the Development Services Department has prepared CEQA Exemption for <u>WATER</u> <u>GROUP JOB 941</u>, WBS No. B-11037, as referenced in the Contract Appendix. The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the Notice of Exemption as set forth in Contract Appendix.

## END OF SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS (SSP)

# APPENDIX A

# Notice of Exemption

#### NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

(Check one or both)

TO: X RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK P.O. BOX 1750, MS A-33

P.O. BOX 1750, MS A-33 1600 Pacific Hwy, Room 260 San Diego, CA 92101-2422 FROM: CITY OF SAN DIEGO DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1222 FIRST A VENUE, MS 501 SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH 1400 TENTH STREET, ROOM 121 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814

WBS No.: B-11037

#### PROJECT TITLE: Water Group Job 941

<u>PROJECT LOCATION-SPECIFIC:</u> The project is located within the public right-of-way along a portion of Ridge View Drive extending between the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Ridge View Drive to approximately 120 feet southwest of the intersection of Laurel Street and Ridge View Drive within the Mid City Communities: City Heights Community Planning Area.

#### PROJECT LOCATION-CITY/COUNTY: San Diego/San Diego

DESCRIPTION OF NATURE AND PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT: The project would replace-in-place 2,441 linear feet (LF) of 16inch cast iron water pipe with new 12-inch polyvinyl chloride (PVC) water pipe within existing trench alignments at existing trench depths by conventional open trench excavation. Related work would include installation of valves, fire hydrants, curb ramps at the intersection of Ridge View Drive and Euclid Avenue in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act regulations, and street resurfacing.

NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT: City of San Diego

NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT PROJECT: City of San Diego, E&CP Dept/Mahmoud Oriqat 600 B Street, Suite 800, MS 908A San Diego, CA 92101 (619) 533-5232

EXEMPT STATUS: (CHECK ONE)

- () MINISTERIAL (SEC. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
- () DECLARED EMERGENCY (SEC. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
- () EMERGENCY PROJECT (SEC. 21080(b)(4); 15269 (b)(c)
- () CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION:
- (X) STATUTORY EXEMPTION: 15282 (k) pipelines less than one mile

<u>REASONS WHY PROJECT IS EXEMPT:</u> The City of San Diego conducted an Initial Study which determined that since the water pipe project is less than one mile in length, is located within the public right of way, and no surface structures are being proposed that relate to the operation of the pipeline, that the project would qualify to be statutorily exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15282(k)

LEAD AGENCY CONTACT PERSON: JEAN CAMERON

TELEPHONE: (619) 446-5379

IF FILED BY APPLICANT:

- 1. ATTACH CERTIFIED DOCUMENT OF EXEMPTION FINDING.
- 2. HAS A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION BEEN FILED BY THE PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING THE PROJECT? () YES () NO

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO HAS DETERMINED THE ABOVE ACTIVITY TO BE EXEMPT FROM CEQA

PLE

JEAN CAMERON/SENIOR PLANNER CHECK ONE: (X) SIGNED BY LEAD AGENCY

9/22/11\_\_\_\_ DATE

DATE RECEIVED FOR FILING WITH COUNTY CLERK OR OPR:

( ) SIGNED BY APPLICANT

Appendix A Notice of Exemption Water Group Job 941 51 | Page

# APPENDIX B

# Fire Hydrant Meter Program

.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT		EFFECTIVE DATE
	PAGE 10F 10	A
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM	*	October 15, 2002
(FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER		
PROGRAM)		
	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	<b>DI</b> 55.27	April 21, 2000

#### 1. PURPOSE

1.1 To establish a Departmental policy and procedure for issuance, proper usage and charges for fire hydrant meters.

# 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>

- 2.1 All authorities and references shall be current versions and revisions.
- 2.2 San Diego Municipal Code (NC) Chapter VI, Article 7, Sections 67.14 and 67.15
- 2.3 Code of Federal Regulations, Safe Drinking Water Act of 1986
- 2.4 California Code of Regulations, Titles 17 and 22
- 2.5 California State Penal Code, Section 498B.0
- 2.6 State of California Water Code, Section 110, 500-6, and 520-23
- 2.7 Water Department Director

## Reference

- 2.8 State of California Guidance Manual for Cross Connection Programs
- 2.9 American Water Works Association Manual M-14, Recommended Practice for Backflow Prevention
- 2.10 American Water Works Association Standards for Water Meters
- 2.11 U.S.C. Foundation for Cross Connection Control and Hydraulic Research Manual

## 3. **DEFINITIONS**

3.1 Fire Hydrant Meter: A portable water meter which is connected to a fire hydrant for the purpose of temporary use. (These meters are sometimes referred to as Construction Meters.)

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	NUMBER DI 55.27	DEPARTMENT Water Department
SUBJECT	<b>PAGE 20F</b> 10	EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)		October 15, 2002
* *	SUPERSEDES DI 55.27	<b>DATED</b> Apríl 21, 2000

- 3.2 **Temporary Water Use:** Water provided to the customer for no longer than twelve (12) months.
- 3.3 Backflow Preventor: A Reduced Pressure Principal Assembly connected to the outlet side of a Fire Hydrant Meter.

#### 4. POLICY

- 4.1 The Water Department shall collect a deposit from every customer requiring a fire hydrant meter and appurtenances prior to providing the meter and appurtenances (see Section 7.1 regarding the Fees and Deposit Schedule). The deposit is refundable upon the termination of use and return of equipment and appurtenances in good working condition.
- 4.2 Fire hydrant meters will have a 2 ½" swivel connection between the meter and fire hydrant. The meter shall not be connected to the 4" port on the hydrant. All Fire Hydrant Meters issued shall have a Reduced Pressure Principle Assembly (RP) as part of the installation. Spanner wrenches are the only tool allowed to turn on water at the fire hydrant.
- 4.3 The use of private hydrant meters on City hydrants is prohibited, with exceptions as noted below. All private fire hydrant meters are to be phased out of the City of San Diego. All customers who wish to continue to use their own fire hydrant meters must adhere to the following conditions:
  - a. Meters shall meet all City specifications and American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards.
  - b. Customers currently using private fire hydrant meters in the City of San Diego water system will be allowed to continue using the meter under the following conditions:
    - 1. The customer must submit a current certificate of accuracy and calibration results for private meters and private backflows annually to the City of San Diego, Water Department, Meter Shop.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT	PAGE 3OF 10	EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)		October 15, 2002
<b>8</b>	SUPERSEDES DI 55.27	<b>DATED</b> April 21, 2000

- 2. The meter must be properly identifiable with a clearly labeled serial number on the body of the fire hydrant meter. The serial number shall be plainly stamped on the register lid and the main casing. Serial numbers shall be visible from the top of the meter casing and the numbers shall be stamped on the top of the inlet casing flange.
- 3. All meters shall be locked to the fire hydrant by the Water Department, Meter Section (see Section 4.7).
- 4. All meters shall be read by the Water Department, Meter Section (see Section 4.7).
- 5. All meters shall be relocated by the Water Department; Meter Section (see Section 4.7).
- 6. These meters shall be tested on the anniversary of the original test date and proof of testing will be submitted to the Water Department, Meter Shop, on a yearly basis. If not tested, the meter will not be allowed for use in the City of San Diego.
- 7. All private fire hydrant meters shall have backflow devices attached when installed.
- 8. The customer must maintain and repair their own private meters and private backflows.
- 9. The customer must provide current test and calibration results to the Water Department, Meter Shop after any repairs.
- 10. When private meters are damaged beyond repair, these private meters will be replaced by City owned fire hydrant meters.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	NUMBER DI 55.27	DEPARTMENT Water Department
SUBJECT	PAGE 4OF 10	EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)		October 15, 2002
angunan arka an mo <b>nt</b>	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	DI 55.27	April 21, 2000

11. When a private meter malfunctions, the customer will be notified and the meter will be removed by the City and returned to the customer for repairs. Testing and calibration results shall be given to the City prior to any reinstallation.

- 12. The register shall be hermetically sealed straight reading and shall be readable from the inlet side. Registration shall be in hundred cubic feet.
- 13. The outlet shall have a 2 ½ "National Standards Tested (NST) fire hydrant male coupling.
- 14. Private fire hydrant meters shall not be transferable from one contracting company to another (i.e. if a company goes out of business or is bought out by another company).
- 4.4 All fire hydrant meters and appurtenances shall be installed, relocated and removed by the City of San Diego, Water Department. All City owned fire hydrant meters and appurtenances shall be maintained by the City of San Diego, Water Department, Meter Services.
- 4.5 If any fire hydrant meter is used in violation of this Department Instruction, the violation will be reported to the Code Compliance Section for investigation and appropriate action. Any customer using a fire hydrant meter in violation of the requirements set forth above is subject to fines or penalties pursuant to the Municipal Code, Section 67.15 and Section 67.37.

# 4.6 Conditions and Processes for Issuance of a Fire Hydrant Meter

#### Process for Issuance

- a. Fire hydrant meters shall only be used for the following purposes:
  - 1. Temporary irrigation purposes not to exceed one year.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT		EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)	PAGE 5OF 10	October 15, 2002
	SUPERSEDES DI 55.27	DATED April 21, 2000

- 2. Construction and maintenance related activities (see Tab 2).
- b. No customer inside or outside the boundaries of the City of San Diego Water Department shall resell any portion of the water delivered through a fire hydrant by the City of San Diego Water Department.
- c. The City of San Diego allows for the issuance of a temporary fire hydrant meter for a period not to exceed 12 months (365 days). An extension can only be granted in writing from the Water Department Director for up to 90 additional days. A written request for an extension by the consumer must be submitted at least 30 days prior to the 12 month period ending. No extension shall be granted to any customer with a delinquent account with the Water Department. No further extensions shall be granted.
- d. Any customer requesting the issuance of a fire hydrant meter shall file an application with the Meter Section. The customer must complete a "Fire Hydrant Meter Application" (Tab 1) which includes the name of the company, the party responsible for payment, Social Security number and/or California ID, requested location of the meter (a detailed map signifying an exact location), local contact person, local phone number, a contractor's license (or a business license), description of specific water use, duration of use at the site and full name and address of the person responsible for payment.

e. At the time of the application the customer will pay their fees according to the schedule set forth in the Rate Book of Fees and Charges, located in the City Clerk's Office. All fees must be paid by check, money order or cashiers check, made payable to the City Treasurer. Cash will not be accepted.

- f. No fire hydrant meters shall be furnished or relocated for any customer with a delinquent account with the Water Department.
- g. After the fees have been paid and an account has been created, the

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	NUMBER DI 55.27	DEPARTMENT Water Department
SUBJECT	PAGE 6OF 10	EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)		October 15, 2002
	SUPERSEDES DI 55.27	DATED April 21, 2000

meter shall be installed within 48 hours (by the second business day). For an additional fee, at overtime rates, meters can be installed within 24 hours (within one business day).

# 4.7 Relocation of Existing Fire Hydrant Meters

- a. The customer shall call the Fire Hydrant Meter Hotline (herein referred to as "Hotline"), a minimum of 24 hours in advance, to request the relocation of a meter. A fee will be charged to the existing account, which must be current before a work order is generated for the meter's relocation.
- b. The customer will supply in writing the address where the meter is to be relocated (map page, cross street, etc). The customer must update the original Fire Hydrant Meter Application with any changes as it applies to the new location.
- c. Fire hydrant meters shall be read on a monthly basis. While fire hydrant meters and backflow devices are in service, commodity, base fee and damage charges, if applicable, will be billed to the customer on a monthly basis. If the account becomes delinquent, the meter will be removed.

## 4.8 Disconnection of Fire Hydrant Meter

- a. After ten (10) months a "Notice of Discontinuation of Service" (Tab 3) will be issued to the site and the address of record to notify the customer of the date of discontinuance of service. An extension can only be granted in writing from the Water Department Director for up to 90 additional days (as stated in Section 4.6C) and a copy of the extension shall be forwarded to the Meter Shop Supervisor. If an extension has not been approved, the meter will be removed after twelve (12) months of use.
- b. Upon completion of the project the customer will notify the Meter Services office via the Hotline to request the removal of the fire hydrant meter and appurtenances. A work order will be generated

t.		•
CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	<b>DI</b> 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT		EFFECTIVE DATE
	<b>PAGE 70F 10</b>	
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM		October 15, 2002
(FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER		
PROGRAM)		
	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	DI 55.27	April 21, 2000

for removal of the meter.

- c. Meter Section staff will remove the meter and backflow prevention assembly and return it to the Meter Shop. Once returned to the Meter Shop the meter and backflow will be tested for accuracy and functionality.
- d. Meter Section Staff will contact and notify Customer Services of the final read and any charges resulting from damages to the meter and backflow or its appurtenance. These charges will be added on the customer's final bill and will be sent to the address of record. Any customer who has an outstanding balance will not receive additional meters.
- e. Outstanding balances due may be deducted from deposits and any balances refunded to the customer. Any outstanding balances will be turned over to the City Treasurer for collection. Outstanding balances may also be transferred to any other existing accounts.

# 5. <u>EXCEPTIONS</u>

5.1 Any request for exceptions to this policy shall be presented, in writing, to the Customer Support Deputy Director, or his/her designee for consideration.

## 6. <u>MOBILE METER</u>

- 6.1 Mobile meters will be allowed on a case by case basis. All mobile meters will be protected by an approved backflow assembly and the minimum requirement will be a Reduced Pressure Principal Assembly. The two types of Mobile Meters are vehicle mounted and floating meters. Each style of meters has separate guidelines that shall be followed for the customer to retain service and are described below:
  - a) Vehicle Mounted Meters: Customer applies for and receives a City owned Fire Hydrant Meter from the Meter Shop. The customer mounts the meter on the vehicle and brings it to the Meter Shop for

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT	PAGE 80F 10	EFFECTIVE DATE
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM (FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER PROGRAM)		October 15, 2002
a and a second and a second	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	DI 55.27	April 21, 2000

inspection. After installation is approved by the Meter Shop the vehicle and meter shall be brought to the Meter Shop on a monthly basis for meter reading and on a quarterly basis for testing of the backflow assembly. Meters mounted at the owner's expense shall have the one year contract expiration waived and shall have meter or backflow changed if either fails.

- b) Floating Meters: Floating Meters are meters that are not mounted to a vehicle. (Note: All floating meters shall have an approved backflow assembly attached.) The customer shall submit an application and a letter explaining the need for a floating meter to the Meter Shop. The Fire Hydrant Meter Administrator, after a thorough review of the needs of the customer, (i.e. number of jobsites per day, City contract work, lack of mounting area on work vehicle, etc.), may issue a floating meter. At the time of issue, it will be necessary for the customer to complete and sign the "Floating Fire Hydrant Meter Agreement" which states the following:
  - 1) The meter will be brought to the Meter Shop at 2797 Caminito Chollas, San Diego on the third week of each month for the monthly read by Meter Shop personnel.
  - 2) Every other month the meter will be read and the backflow will be tested. This date will be determined by the start date of the agreement.

If any of the conditions stated above are not met the Meter Shop has the right to cancel the contract for floating meter use and close the account associated with the meter. The Meter Shop will also exercise the right to refuse the issuance of another floating meter to the company in question,

Any Fire Hydrant Meter using reclaimed water shall not be allowed use again with any potable water supply. The customer shall incur the cost of replacing the meter and backflow device in this instance.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
<b>DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS</b>	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT		EFFECTIVE DATE
	<b>PAGE 90F 10</b>	
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM		October 15, 2002
(FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER		
PROGRAM)		
······································	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	DI 55.27	April 21, 2000

## 7. FEE AND DEPOSIT SCHEDULES.

7.1 Fees and Deposit Schedules: The fees and deposits, as listed in the Rate Book of Fees and Charges, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, are based on actual reimbursement of costs of services performed, equipment and materials. Theses deposits and fees will be amended, as needed, based on actual costs. Deposits, will be refunded at the end of the use of the fire hydrant meter, upon return of equipment in good working condition and all outstanding balances on account are paid. Deposits can also be used to cover outstanding balances.

All fees for equipment, installation, testing, relocation and other costs related to this program are subject to change without prior notification. The Mayor and Council will be notified of any future changes.

## 8. UNAUTHORIZED USE OF WATER FROM A HYDRANT

- 8.1 Use of water from any fire hydrant without a properly issued and installed fire hydrant meter is theft of City property. Customers who use water for unauthorized purposes or without a City of San Diego issued meter will be prosecuted.
- 8.2 If any unauthorized connection, disconnection or relocation of a fire hydrant meter, or other connection device is made by anyone other than authorized Water Department personnel, the person making the connection will be prosecuted for a violation of San Diego Municipal Code, Section 67.15. In the case of a second offense, the customer's fire hydrant meter shall be confiscated and/or the deposit will be forfeited.
- 8.3 Unauthorized water use shall be billed to the responsible party. Water use charges shall be based on meter readings, or estimates when meter readings are not available.
- 8.4 In case of unauthorized water use, the customer shall be billed for all applicable charges as if proper authorization for the water use had been obtained, including but not limited to bi-monthly service charges, installation charges and removal charges.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA	NUMBER	DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTIONS	DI 55.27	Water Department
SUBJECT		EFFECTIVE DATE
	PAGE 100F 10	
FIRE HYDRANT METER PROGRAM		October 15, 2002
(FORMERLY: CONSTRUCTION METER		
PROGRAM)		
	SUPERSEDES	DATED
	DI 55.27	April 21, 2000

8.5 If damage occurs to Water Department property (i.e. fire hydrant meter, backflow, various appurtenances), the cost of repairs or replacements will be charged to the customer of record (applicant).

## Water Department Director

- Tabs:1.Fire Hydrant Meter Application
  - 2. Construction & Maintenance Related Activities With No Return To Sewer
  - 3. Notice of Discontinuation of Service

#### APPENDIX

Administering Division: Cust

Customer Support Division

Subject Index:

Construction Meters Fire Hydrant Fire Hydrant Meter Program Meters, Floating or Vehicle Mounted Mobile Meter Program, Fire Hydrant Meter

Distribution:

DI Manual Holders

		6 2 8 9 mm			Atto Finish Att	A STATE AND	Use Only	Land Contractor
Woldesundra	ation For			ľ				
Woter Hydra						<u>Vesezv</u>		Sec. 2.
Cominio Choles • Sen Diego, Celifonio 921 leter Information	ER SHOP 619	527 7449 527 3125		ion Date	x = R	equested	Install Date:	i:
and the second	A CONTRACTOR AND A						<b>212 - 112 - 112 - 112 - 112 - 112 - 112</b>	
ire Hydrant Location: (Attach	detailed map, Thom	nas Bros. m	ap location o	or consi	truction dra	awing.)		
	,	× 4		11	* %:			
pecific Use of Water:								
.962 .22					v.	• <b>¥</b> :	nin S	°ъ. К
ny return to Sewer or Storm I	Drain, if so, explain:			*	***************************************	7		
	·		. war.		*	ŝ.	4	
stimated Duration of Meter U	se:				T ch	ieck Box il	Reclaimed	Water
Company Informatio					an a	n saint an		
Company Name:	•:							
failing Address			.: 					*****
z Xty:	State	2	Zip Code:		Phon	e: ( )	I	*****
Business License #:			*Contractor	License	<u> </u>			* 
A copy of the Contractor's License	and/or Business Licer					****	*****	
Name and Title of Agent:					Phone: (	·····		<b>14</b> 100111111111111111111111111111111111
				· · · · · · · · ·	1	1 	* **********	Sector 2 18
Site Contact Name and Title:	<u>. 48. 485.</u>		<u> </u>		Phone: (	and the second s		
Pager #:	a set i fa - protection	Sec. 1	Carlos Santa	1	Cell .: (	$\sim 10^{-1}$		78.67
and the second			<u>, 199</u> , 18, 693				and the second s	
Responsible Party Name:			<u></u>		Titler			
Responsible Party Name:					Title: Phone: (			
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #:	الم المراجع ال 				Phone: (		annen an	
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature:	ninnijona (jemo orazini orazina orazina) ali godeno orazina ali godeno orazina ali godeno orazina ali godeno o 	Insure's that err	playées of this of	nganizalion	Phone: ( Date:			lýr.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Sugrantees payment of all charges resultin	g from the use of this meter.			ganizalion	Phone: ( Date:			léř.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin	g from the use of this meter.		quest		Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol		ėt.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin	g from the use of this meter.	val Re	quest		Phone: ( Date:	s propanusė ol		ler.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Me	g from the use of this meter. Ster Remov Removal of Above	Val Re	quest		Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol		61.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request	g from the use of this meter. Ster Remov Removal of Above	Val Re	quest		Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol		ér.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Sugrantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location	g from the use of this meter. Ster Remov Removal of Above	Val Re	quest		Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol		<u><u><u></u></u></u>
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature:	g from the use of this meter. Ster Remov Removal of Above	Val Re	quest [Flee;	guested i	Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol	File Hydranl Me	<u><u><u></u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u>
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location	g from the use of this meter, eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re	quest <sub>[Req</sub>		Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol	File Hydranl Me	
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature:	g from the use of this meter, eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove:	<b>quest</b>  Flac   Title:  Pager: (	guested i	Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol	File Hydranl Me	
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: ()	g from the use of this meter, eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove:	quest [Flee;	guested i	Phone: ( Date: understand the	s propanusė ol	File Hydranl Me	ler.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: ( )	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Offic	<b>quest</b> Rec Title: Pager: ( <u>e Use Only</u>	juested (	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da	s propanusė ol	Fire Hydrani Me	er.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Me Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: ( )	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Offic	<b>quest</b>  Flac   Title:  Pager: (	juested ( ) ) ] [1] \$	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da	te: Fees Amc	Fire Hydrani Me	ler.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Guarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: ( ) City Meter	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Offic	<b>quest</b> Rec Title: Pager: ( <u>e Use Only</u>	juested ( ) ) ] [1] \$	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da	te: Fees Amc & Style: s	Fire Hydrani Me	61.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Buarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Met Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: () City Meter	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Office	quest Rec Title: Pager: ( e Use Only posit Amoun posit Amoundation	yuested ) ) TL: <b>S</b>	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da	te: Fees Amc	Fire Hydrani Me	er.
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Buarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Mit Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: ( ) City Meter	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Office	quest Flec Title: Pager: ( <u>e Use Only</u> posit Amoun	yuested ) ) TL: <b>S</b>	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da Removal Da	te: Fees Amc	Fire Hydrani Me	
Responsible Party Name: Social Security or Cal ID #: Signature: Buarantees payment of all charges resultin Fire Hydrant Met Check Box to Request Provide current Meter location Signature: Phone: () City Meter	g from the use of this meter. Eter Remov Removal of Above a If different from ab	Val Re Meter ove: For Offic De Ba	quest Rec Title: Pager: ( e Use Only posit Amoun posit Amoundation	yuested ) ) TL: <b>S</b>	Phone: ( Date: understand the Removal Da Removal Da	te: Fees Amo & Style: & Style:	Fire Hydrani Me	

\*\*

#### "Exhibit B"

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE RELATED ACTIVITIES WITH NO RETURN TO SEWER:

Auto Detailing Backfilling **Combination Cleaners (Vactors)** Compaction Concrete Cutters ١ **Construction Trailers Cross Connection Testing** Dust Control Flushing Water Mains Hydro blasting Hydro Seeding Irrigation (for establishing irrigation only; not continuing irrigation) Mixing Concrete Mobile Car Washing **Special Events** Street Sweeping Water Tanks Water Trucks Window Washing

Note: If there is any return to sewer or storm drain, then sewer and/or storm drain fees will be charged.

#### "Exhibit C"

Date

Name of Responsible Party Company Name and address Account Number:

Subject:

#### Discontinuation of Fire Hydrant Meter Service

Dear Water Department Customer:

The authorization for use of Fire Hydrant Meter #\_\_\_\_\_, located at (<u>Meter location address</u>) ends in 60 days and will be removed on or after (<u>Date authorization expires</u>). Extension requests for an additional 90 days must be submitted in writing for consideration 30 days prior to the discontinuation date. If you require an extension, please refer to the Water Departments', Department Instruction (D.I.) 55.27 for further information and procedure.

Mail your request for an extension to :

City of San Diego, Water Department Attn: Meter Services 2797 Caminito Chollas San Diego, Ca. 92105-5097

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please call the Fire Hydrant "Hot Line" at: (xxx) xxx - xxxx.

Sincerely,

City of San Diego Water Department

Appendix B Fire Hydrant Meter Program Water Group Job 941 65 | Page

	ant Meter Removal R	(EXHIBIT D)	For NS Ref : Date 1, 1995 (1997)	Office Use Only THM Endy THM Endy BM Endy
Date:	to (xxx) xxx	Complete pertinel x-xxxx, mail, or han t/Meter Shop at: 2	d-deliver to the City	FAX both form and map y of San Diego, Water: las
leter Information			San Diego, CA	
Billing Account #:		Requested Mov	e Date:	
Current Fire Hydrant Meter Location:	······································			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
•				- - -
New Meter Location: (Attach a detaile	d man Thomas Bros	man location or go	otruction drawing	· · ·
ew Melei Localon. (Allacit a delaile	u map, momas bios	map location of col	isuucuon ulaming.	
	•			•
Company Information				
Company Name:		<u></u>		
Nailing Address				
		lation (		
City:	State:	Zip Code:	Phone: ( )	1
lame and Title of Requestor:			Phone: ( )	
Site Contact Name and Title			Phone: ((), ())	
ager#1 sectors and a sector of the				
Responsible Party Name authorizing r	elocation fee:		<u></u>	•
Signature:	Title:		Date:	
			L	
Fire Hydrant Meter I	Removal Re	equest		
Check Box to Request Remove	l of Above Meter	Requested	Removal Date:	
Provide current Meter location if different	······································			
,				
Signature:		Title:		Date:
Phone: ( )		Pager: ( )	·	
,	For Offic	ce Use Only		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
JS Account #		es Amount - \$		
Neter Senal #2		Size:	Make/Style	
Backflow #		Size:	Make/Style	
lame:		gnature:		A Date:
2.1941年1月1日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日日	行并非常能够能产于1%。"	<b>定于新广东</b> 的东西。在		出来的 新闻 化合同

Appendix B Fire Hydrant Meter Program Water Group Job 941

## APPENDIX C

Materials Typically Accepted by Certificate of Compliance

Appendix C Materials Typically Accepted by Certificate of Compliance Water Group Job 941

# Materials Typically Accepted by Certificate of Compliance

- 1. Soil amendment
- 2. Fiber mulch
- 3. PVC or PE pipe up to 16 inch diameter
- 4. Stabilizing emulsion
- 5. Lime
- 6. Preformed elastomeric joint seal
- 7. Plain and fabric reinforced elastomeric bearing pads
- 8. Steel reinforced elastomeric bearing pads
- 9. Waterstops (Special Condition)
- 10. Epoxy coated bar reinforcement
- 11. Plain and reinforcing steel
- 12. Structural steel
- 13. Structural timber and lumber
- 14. Treated timber and lumber
- 15. Lumber and timber
- 16. Aluminum pipe and aluminum pipe arch
- 17. Corrugated steel pipe and corrugated steel pipe arch
- 18. Structural metal plate pipe arches and pipe arches
- 19. Perforated steel pipe
- 20. Aluminum underdrain pipe
- 21. Aluminum or steel entrance tapers, pipe downdrains, reducers, coupling bands and slip joints
- 22. Metal target plates
- 23. Paint (traffic striping)
- 24. Conductors
- 25. Painting of electrical equipment
- 26. Electrical components
- 27. Engineering fabric
- 28. Portland Cement
- 29. PCC admixtures
- 30. Minor concrete, asphalt
- 31. Asphalt (oil)
- 32. Liquid asphalt emulsion
- 33. Epoxy
## APPENDIX D

# Sample City Invoice

City of San Diego, Field Engineering Div., 9485 Aero Drive, SD CA 92123					Contractor's Name:						
Project Name:						Contractor's Address:					
SAP No. (WBS/IO/CC)											
_	rchase Order No.					Contract	or's Phone	#:		Invoice No.	
Resident Engineer (RE):										Invoice Date:	
RE Pho	ne#:	RE Fax#:				Contact N	Name:		Billing Pe	eriod:	
	Provident - Providences	a state of	Contra	ct Authorizat	ion	Previous	Estimate	This E	stimate	Totals 1	o Date
Item #	Item Description	Unit	Otv	Price	Extension	%/OTY	Amount	% / OTY	Amount	%/QTY	Amount
1	2 Parallel 4" PVC C900	LF	1,380	\$34.00	\$46,920.00			<u> </u>		~	
2	48" Primary Steel Casing	LF	500	\$1.000.00	\$500,000.00						
	2 Parallel 12" Secondary Steel	LF	1,120	\$53.00	\$59,360.00					······	
4	Construction and Rehab of PS 49	LS	1	\$150,000.00	\$150,000.00						
	Demo	LS	1	\$14,000.00	\$14,000.00	<u> </u>				· · · · ·	
	Install 6' High Chain Link Fence	LS	1	\$5,600.00	\$5,600.00						
	General Site Restoration	LS	1	\$3,700.00	\$3,700.00						
8	10" Gravity Sewer	LF	10	\$292.00	\$2,920.00				1		
	4" Blow Off Valves	EA	2	\$9,800.00	\$19,600.00						
	Bonds	LS	1	\$16,000.00	\$16,000.00						
	Field Orders	AL	1	80,000	\$80,000.00						
11.1	Field Order 1	LS	5,500	\$1.00	\$5,500.00						CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR
11.1	Field Order 2	LS	7,500	\$1.00	\$7,500.00						
11.2	Field Order 3	LS	10,000	\$1.00	\$10,000.00						
11.5	Field Order 4	LS	6,500	\$1.00	\$6,500.00						
	Certified Payroll	LS	0,500	\$1.00			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
	2		<u> </u>		<u>\$1,</u> 400.00						
G		1.000							that is the second	and the second se	
2	Order 1	4,890		10000	<u>611 350 00</u>				CONT CONTRACTO	and the second second	
Items 1		TT	100	<b>A B A A</b>	\$11,250.00						
	Deduct Bid Item 3	LF	120	-\$53.00	(\$6,360.00)		1.45 To Los Trobas Dia				
		160,480	star led to an	hilder A. F. Langer	005 000 00		asterna ana	an a	Colorador Penneau	an ta an ta ta tanta na An	CONTRACTOR AND CONTRACT
Items 1		TE	200	6340.00	\$95,000.00					· · · ·	
	Deduct Bid Item 1 Encrease bid Item 9	LF LF	<u>380</u> 8	-\$340.00	(\$12,920.00) \$78,400.00						
	Order 3 (Close Out)	-121,500		\$9,800.00	5/8,400.00		i antina artest				
	Deduct Bid Item 3	-121,500									
	Deduct Bid Item 5	LS	<u>53</u> -1	-500.00 45,000.00	(\$26,500.00) (\$45,000.00)						
Items 3			-1	-50,500.00	(\$45,000.00)						
xiems 5	- Alithtee States		I	-30,300.00	(0.0,000,00)	<u> </u>		Total			
	SUMMARY							This	\$ -	<b>Total Billed</b>	\$0.00
A. Orig	inal Contract Amount						Ret	ention an	d/or Escro	w Payment Sche	dule
			and the second s					this billing			
	Authorized Amount (A+B)									PO or in Escrow	
	I Billed to Date					<u> </u>				ransfer in Escrow	
	Total Retention (5% of D)					<u> </u>				om PO/Escrow:	·
					5.43 States	<b></b>					
F. Less	F. Less Total Previous Payments										
	nent Due Less Retention				an officiation	Contract	or Signatu	re and Da	te:		

Appendix D Sample City Invoice Water Group Job 941

.....

70 | Page

# APPENDIX E

# Location Map

Appendix E Location Map Water Group Job 941



# APPENDIX F

# Hydrostatic Discharge Certification

# **APPENDIX**

# Hydrostatic Discharge Requirements Certification (Discharge Events < 500,000 gpd)

All discharge activities related to this project comply with the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) Order No. 2002-0020, General Permit for Discharges of Hydrostatic Test Water and Potable Water to Surface Water and Storm Drains as referenced by (http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/rwqcb9/board\_decisions/adopted\_orders/2002/2002\_0020.shtml), and as follows:

scha	rged water has been dec	hlorinated to below 0.1	(mg/l) level; and effluer	nt has been maintained l	between <u>6 and 9</u> ( <i>PH</i> ) bas	ed on:	is dischar acceptab		Comment
vent #	Discharge Date & Amount (GAL)	Discharge Time	Meter Readings (at source)	Test Results (Chlorine / PH)	Name of Personnel Conducting Tests (print)	*signature of personnel	yes	по	
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						· · ·
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:					-	
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:			ļ			
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:	_					
	Amt	End:	End:			l			
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt:	End:	End:						
	Date	Start:	Start:						
	Amt	End:	End:					***	

Project Name:

Work Order No.(s):\_\_\_

Have any thresholds have been exceeded? Per Order No. 2002-0020, would this be a reportable discharge and must be reported within 24 hours of the event? [Reportable discharge would include violation of maximum gallons per day, any upset which exceeds any efficient limit]

Appendix F Hydrostatic Discharge Form Water Group Job 941 74 | Page

#### APPENDIX G

# Adjacent Project(s)

Appendix G Adjacent Project(s) Water Group Job 941



# **City of San Diego**

# **ADDENDUM "A"**



# FOR

# WATER GROUP JOB 941

BID NO.:	K-13-1048-DBB-3
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC).:	B-11037
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	2000
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	4
PROJECT TYPE:	KB

For which proposals will be received at the Public Works Contracting Group, 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, California 92101, until **2:00 PM on <u>SEPTEMBER 25, 2012</u>**.

#### A. CHANGES TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The following changes to the Contract Documents are hereby made effective as though originally issued with the bid package. Bidders are reminded that all previous requirements to this solicitation remain in full force and effect.

#### B. VOLUME 2:

1. To form "List of Subcontractors", Form AA35, page 14, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with page 2 of 2 of this Addendum.

Tony Heinrichs, Director Public Works Department

Dated: *August 23, 2012* San Diego, California

TH/CG/BD/egz

#### LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In accordance with the requirements provided in the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and address of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also list below the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors that Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR	CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER	TYPE OF WORK	DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB ①	WHERE CERTIFIED ©	CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP
Name:           Address:           City:           Zip:   Phone:						
Name:						
Name:						

① As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcontractor as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):

Certified Minority Business Enterprise	MBE	Certified Woman Business Enterprise	WBE
Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise	DBE	Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise	DVBE
Other Business Enterprise	OBE	Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise	ELBE
Certified Small Local Business Enterprise	SLBE	Small Disadvantaged Business	SDB
Woman-Owned Small Business	WoSB	HUBZone Business	HUBZone
Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business	SDVOSB		
<sup>2</sup> As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is cert	ified by:		
City of San Diego	CITY	State of California Department of Transportation	CALTRANS
California Public Utilities Commission	CPUC	San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council	SRMSDC
State of California's Department of General Services	CADoGS	City of Los Angeles	LA
State of California	CA	U.S. Small Business Administration	SBA
The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation	on percentages if th	e Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certificat	ion (except for
OBE, SLBE and ELBE).	- 0	· ·	· •
Form Title: LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS			

Form Number: AA35

# City of San Diego

ADDRESS: USU HONT STELEPHONE NO.: USU HONT STE



16.

# CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR'S NAME

# FOR

# WATER GROUP JOB 941

# VOLUME 2 OF 2

BID NO.:	K-13-1048-DBB-3	
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	B-11037	
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	2000	
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	4	
PROJECT TYPE:	КВ	

#### THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

> THE CITY'S SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SLBE PROGRAM.

#### THIS BIDDING DOCUMENT TO BE SUBMITTED IN ITS ENTIRETY REFER TO INVITATION TO BIDS FOR TIME, DATE, AND LOCATION

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## Volume 2 - Bidding Documents

The following forms must be completed in their entirety and submitted with the Bid. Include the form(s) even if the information does not apply. Where the information does not apply write in N/A. Failure to include any of the forms may cause the Bid to be deemed **non-responsive**. If you are uncertain or have any questions about any required information, contact the City no later than 14 days prior to Bid due date.

DE	SCRIPTION PAGE NUMBER
1.	Bid/Proposal
2.	Bid Bond
3.	Non-Collusion Affidavit to be executed by Bidder and Submitted with Bid under 23 USC 112 and PCC 7106
4.	Contractors Certification of Pending Actions
5.	Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification of Compliance9
6.	Proposal (Bid) 10-13
7.	Form AA35 List of Subcontractors
8.	Form AA40 Named Equipment/Material Supplier List15

#### PROPOSAL

#### **Bidder's General Information**

To the City of San Diego:

Pursuant-to-"Invitation-to-Bids", specifications, and requirements-on-file-with-the City-Clerk, and subject to all provisions of the Charter and Ordinances of the City of San Diego and applicable laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California, the undersigned hereby proposes to furnish to the City of San Diego, complete at the prices stated herein, the items or services hereinafter mentioned. The undersigned further warrants that this bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

The undersigned bidder(s) further warrants that bidder(s) has thoroughly examined and understands the entire Contract Documents (plans and specifications) and the Bidding Documents therefore, and that by submitting said Bidding Documents as its bid proposal, bidder(s) acknowledges and is bound by the entire Contract Documents, including any addenda issued thereto, as such Contract Documents incorporated by reference in the Bidding Documents.

#### IF A SOLE OWNER OR SOLE CONTRACTOR SIGN HERE:

(1)	Name under which business is conducted	
(2)	Signature (Given and surname) of proprietor	, 
	Place of Business (Street & Number)	
(4)	City and State	Zip Code
(5)	Telephone No Facsin	nile No
<u>IF A P</u> .	ARTNERSHIP, SIGN HERE:	;
(1)	Name under which business is conducted	
(2)	Name of each member of partnership, indicate character (limited):	of each partner, general or special
Proposa	l (Rev. June 2011)	<b>3</b>   Page

.

~

(3) Sig	gnature (Note: Signature must be made by a general partner)
Fu	II Name and Character of partner
(4) Pla	ace of Business (Street & Number)
(5) Cit	ty and State Zip Code
(6) Tel	lephone No Facsimile No
F A COR	PORATION, SIGN HERE:
(1) Na	ume under which business is conducted <u>SC</u> Valley Engineenng. Inc.
	gnature, with official fitle of officer authorized to sign for the corporation:
<del></del>	(Signature)
	Samuel H Wathen
	(Printed Name)
	(Title of Officer)
	(Intre of Officer) (Impress Corporate Seal Here)
(3) Inc	corporated under the laws of the State of <u>CA</u>
(4) Pla	ace of Business (Street & Number) USU Front Striet
(5) Cit	ty and State El Cayon CA Zip Code 92020
(6) Tel	lephone No. <u>[19.444-2300</u> Facsimile No. <u>[19.444-2333</u>
HE FOL	LOWING SECTIONS MUST BE FILLED IN BY ALL PROPOSERS:
	nce with the "INVITATION TO BIDS", the bidder holds a California State Contractor's the following classification(s) to perform the work described in these specifications:
ICENSE (	CLASSIFICATION A
ICENSE 1	NO. 124559 EXPIRES May 31, 201,4
	se classification must also be shown on the front of the bid envelope. Failure to show ssification on the bid envelope may cause return of the bid unopened.
'AX IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER
E-Mail Add	dress: DelleGiscValleyInc. Com
	ev. June 2011) 4   Page

Water Group Job 941

1

. ĥ

-----

#### THIS PROPOSAL MUST BE NOTARIZED BELOW:

I certify, under penalty of perjury, that the representations made herein regarding my State Contractor's license number, classification and expiration date are true and correct.

Signature\_ Tifle 012 SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, THIS DAY OR Notary Public in and for the County of State of V DTARIAL SEAL) (N JOELLE MARIE PEPIN

Commission # 1827141 Notary Public - California San Diego County My Comm. Expires Dec 16, 2012

#### BID BOND

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

ThatS.C. Valley Engineering, Inc	as Princ	ipal, and
----------------------------------	----------	-----------

The Hanover Insurance Company as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto The City of San Diego hereinafter called "OWNER," in the sum of 10% OF THE TOTAL BID AMOUNT for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heits, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, said Principal has submitted a Bid to said OWNER to perform the WORK required under the bidding schedule(s) of the OWNER's Contract Documents entitled

#### Water Group Job 941 / Project number: K-13-1048-DBB-3

SIGNED AND SEALED, this 21 day of September

NOW THEREFORE, if said Principal is awarded a contract by said OWNER and, within the time and in the manner required in the "Invitation to Bids" enters into a written Agreement on the form of agreement bound with said Contract Documents, furnishes the required certificates of insurance, and furnishes the required Performance Bond and Payment Bond, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. In the event suit is brought upon this bond by said OWNER and OWNER prevails, said Surety shall pay all costs incurred by said OWNER in such suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. (SEAL)	The Hanover Insurance Company (SEAL)
(Principal) By: MMMM H Vat	Ey: All All
(Signature)	(Signature) Robert P. Dole, Attorney-in-Fact

(SPAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SURETY)

Bid Bond (Rev. June 2011) Water Group Job 941 6 | Page

, 2012

#### THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

#### POWERS OF ATTORNEY CERTIFIED COPY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY and MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY, both being corporations organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan, do hereby constitute and appoint

#### Nicki Edwards, John T. Dole, Daniel P. Dole and/or Robert P. Dole

of Bonita, CA and each is a true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-fact to sign, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver for, and on its behalf, and as its act and deed any place within the United States, or, if the following line be filled in, only within the area therein designated

any and all bonds, recognizances, undertakings, contracts of indemnity or other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, as follows:

#### Any such obligations in the United States, not to exceed Ten Million and No/100 (\$10,000,000) in any single instance

and said companies hereby ratify and confirm all and whatsoever said Attorney(s)-in-fact may lawfully do in the premises by virtue of these presents. These appointments are made under and by authority of the following Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Companies which resolutions are still in effect:

"RESOLVED, That the President or any Vice President, in conjunction with any Vice President, be and they are hereby authorized and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-fact of the Company, in its name and as its acts, to execute and acknowledge for and on its behalf as Surety any and all bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, waivers of citation and all other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, with power to attach thereto the seal of the Company. Any such writings so executed by such Attorneys-in-fact shall be as binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company in their own proper persons." (Adopted October 7, 1981 - The Hanover Insurance Company; Adopted April 14, 1982 -Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company; Adopted September 7, 2001 - Citizens Insurance Company of America)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY, MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY and CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA have caused these presents to be sealed with their respective corporate seals, duly attested by two Vice Presidents, this **11th** day of **November 2011**.



THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA Addue Homman Robert Thomas, Vice President

ad/Vice P

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ) COUNTY OF WORCESTER )ss.

On this **11th** day of **November 2011** before me came the above named Vice Presidents of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described herein, and acknowledged that the seals affixed to the preceding instrument are the corporate seals of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, respectively, and that the said corporate seals and their signatures as officers were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the authority and direction of said Corporations.



tostink

Barbara A. Garlick, Notary Public My Commission Expires September 21, 2018

I, the undersigned Vice President of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America, hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Companies, and do hereby further certify that the said Powers of Attorney are still in force and effect.

This Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of Directors of The Hanover Insurance Company, Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company and Citizens Insurance Company of America.

"RESOLVED, That any and all Powers of Attorney and Certified Copies of such Powers of Attorney and certification in respect thereto, granted and executed by the President or any Vice President in conjunction with any Vice President of the Company, shall be binding on the Company to the same extent as if all signatures therein were manually affixed, even though one or more of any such signatures thereon may be facsimile." (Adopted October 7, 1881 - The Hanover Insurance Company; Adopted April 14, 1982 - Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company; Adopted September 7, 2001 - Citizens Insurance Company of America)

GIVEN under my hand and the seals of said Companies, at Worcester, Massachusetts, this 21 day of September 2012.

THE HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY CITIZENS INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

rslam

Gleńn Margoslan, Vice President

# CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

.

.

State of California	
County of San Diego	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
On 9/21/2012 before me, Nicki Edward	ls, Notary Public,
personally appeared Robert P. Dole,	who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.
	I certify under the PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
OFFICIAL SEAL NICKI EDWARDS NOTARY PUBLIC CALIFORNIA OOMM. NO. 1839312 SAN DIEGO COUNTY MY COMM. EXP. MAR. 31, 201	WITNESS my hand and official seal. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature of Notary
	OPTIONAL
Though the data below is not required by I fraudulent reattachment of this form.	aw, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent
CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SI	GNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT
<ul> <li>INDIVIDUAL</li> <li>CORPORATE OFFICER</li> </ul>	
☐ PARTNER(S) ☐ LI ⊠ ATTORNEY-IN-FACT ☐ TRUSTEE(S) ☐ GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR OTHER:	MITED
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES The Hanover Insurance Company	)

# NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID UNDER 23 UNITED STATES CODE 112 AND **PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 7106**

State of California SS. County of being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he or she is of the party making the foregoing bid that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. Signed: Title: Subscribed and swofn to before me this day of Notary JOELLE MARIE PEPIN (SEAL) Commission # 1827141 Notary Public - California San Diegb POLEAty

My Comm. Expires Dec 16, 2012

Non-collusion Affidavit (Rev. June 2011) Water Group Job 941

## **CONTRACTORS CERTIFICATION OF PENDING ACTIONS**

As part of its bid or proposal (Non-Price Proposal in the case of Design-Build contracts), the Bidder shall provide to the City a list of all instances within the past ten years where a complaint was filed or pending against the Bidder in a legal or administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers, and a description of the status or resolution of that complaint, including any remedial action taken.

#### CHECK ONE BOX ONL Y.

X The undersigned certifies that within the past 10 years the Bidder has NOT been the subject of a complaint or pending action in a legal administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers.

The undersigned certifies that within the past ten years the Bidder has been the subject of a complaint or pending action in a legal administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers. A description of the status or resolution of that complaint, including any remedial action taken and the applicable dates is as follows:

Contractor Name Certified By Date 01. Signature USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

. .

.

. .

5

.

EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE EQUAL BENEFITS PROGRAM 202 C Street, MS 9A, San Diego, CA 9210 Phone (619) 533-3948 Fax (619) 533-32	
COMPANY INFORMATION Company Name: COMPCH ENGINEERING, UL Contact Name: Company Name: Contact Name: Company UL W	athen
	stol
El COUDA CA 90020 Contact Email: Court Coch	
CONTRACT INFORMATION	adagiminest
Contract Title: NOTEX Group Job 94 Start Date:	
Contract Number (if no number, state location): K-13-1048-DBB-3 End Date:	
The Equal Benefits Ordinance [EBO] requires the City to enter into contracts only with contractors who certify they	
<ul> <li>provide and maintain equal benefits as defined in SDMC §22.4302 for the duration of the contract. To comply:</li> <li>Contractor shall offer equal benefits to employees with spouses and employees with domestic partners.</li> <li>Benefits include health, dental, vision insurance; pension/401(k) plans; bereavement, family, parental leave; discounts, or care; travel/relocation expenses; employee assistance programs; credit union membership; or any other benefit.</li> <li>Any benefit not offer an employee with a spouse, is not required to be offered to an employee with a domestic partner.</li> <li>Contractor shall post notice of firm's equal benefits policy in the workplace and notify employees at time of hire during open enrollment periods.</li> <li>Contractor shall allow City access to records, when requested, to confirm compliance with EBO requirements.</li> <li>Contractor shall submit <i>EBO Certification of Compliance</i>, signed under penalty of perjury, prior to award of contract. NOTE: This summary is provided for convenience. Full text of the EBO and Rules Implementing the EBO are available <i>www.sandiego.gov/administration.</i></li> </ul>	and
CONTRACTOR EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE CERTIFICATION	
Please indicate your firm's compliance status with the EBO. The City may request supporting documentation.	
I affirm <b>compliance</b> with the EBO because my firm <i>(contractor must <u>select one</u> reason):</i>	
<ul> <li>Provides equal benefits to spouses and domestic partners.</li> <li>Provides no benefits to spouses or domestic partners.</li> <li>Has no employees.</li> </ul>	
Has collective bargaining agreement(s) in place prior to January 1, 2011, that has not been renewed or expired.	
I request the City's approval to pay affected employees a cash equivalent in lieu of equal benefits and v my firm made a reasonable effort but is not able to provide equal benefits upon contract award. I agre notify employees of the availability of a cash equivalent for benefits available to spouses but not dome partners and to continue to make every reasonable effort to extend all available benefits to domestic partners	e to estic
It is unlawful for any contractor to knowingly submit any false information to the City regarding equal benefits or cash equival associated with the execution, award, amendment, or administration of any contract. [San Diego Municipal Code §22.4307(a)]	alent
Under penalty of perjury under laws of the State of California, I certify the above information is true and correct. I further certify that my firm understands the requirements of the Equal Benefits Ordinance and will provide and maintain equal benefit the duration of the contract or pay a cash equivalent if authorized by the City.	
FOR OFFICIAL CITY USE ONLY	
Receipt Date:       EBO Analyst: <ul> <li>Approved</li> <li>Not Approved</li> <li>Reason:</li> </ul> rev 02/15/20	

#### PROPOSAL (BID)

The Bidder agrees to the construction of **WATER GROUP JOB 941**, for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days (90 days for federally funded contracts and contracts valued at \$500,000 or less) from the date of Bid opening to Award of the Contract. The duration of the Contract Price guarantee shall be extended by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all conditions precedent e.g., bond and insurance.

Item	Quantity	Unit	Payment Reference	NAICS	Description	Unit Price	Extension
				·····	BASE BID		
1	1	LS	2-4.1		Bonds (Payment and Performance)	$\square$	\$529B.
2.	1	EA	3-3.2.2		Certified Payroll	\$ [.	\$ .
3.	1	LS	7-9.1.1	238990	Video Recording of Pre-existing Conditions	$\searrow$	\$350.
4.	1	LS	7-10.2.7	237310	Traffic Control		\$2000
5.	1	LS	9-3.4.1	-	Mobilization	$\geq$	\$2,500.
6.	1	AL	9-3.5		Field Orders – Type II Allowance	$\sum$	\$50,000.00
7.	12	EA	301-1.7	237310	Adjusting Existing Manhole Frame & Cover to Grade	\$200	\$2,400
8.	4	EA	302-1.12	237310	Traffic Detector Loop Replacement	\$500-	\$2,000
9.	4,950	LF	302-1.12	237310	Cold Milling Asphalt Concrete Pavement	\$ 90	\$4,455.
10.	8,950	SY	302-7.4	237310	Pavement Fabric	\$2.40	\$23,270.1
11.	725	TON	302-5.9	237310	1-1/2 Inch Asphalt Concrete Overlay and Striping	\$90,1	\$45,250.
12.	6	EA	302-5.9	237310	Road Hump Replacement	\$900.1	\$5,400,-
13.	1	EA	303-5.9	237310	Contractor Date Stamp and Impressions	\$200.	\$ 200,-
14.	1,000	SF	303-5.9	237310	Cross Gutter	\$ 8,25	\$8,250.
15.	100	SF	303-5.9	237310	Additional Sidewalk Removal and Replacement	\$4.75	\$ 475
16.	2	EA	303-5.10.2	237310	Curb Ramp Type A w/Stainless Steel Detectable Warning Tiles	\$2,100,-	\$4,200
17.	1	LS	306-1.1.6	237110	Trench Shoring		\$ [

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Water Group Job 941 10 | Page

Item	Quantity	Unit	Payment Reference	NAICS	Description	Unit Price	Extension
18.	150	CY	306-1.2.1.2	237110	Additional Bedding	\$ 1.7	\$ 150
19.	300	TON	306-1.3.7	237110	Imported Backfill	\$ 1.	\$ 300
20.	184	TON	306-1.5.1	237310	Temporary Resurfacing	\$90.	\$16,560,
21.	30	LF	306-1.6	237110	8 Inch Water Main, Class 235	\$140	\$4,200
22.	2,419	LF	306-1.6	237110	12-Inch Water Main, Class 235	\$ (05,-	\$157,235
23.	82	EA	306-14.1	237110	1 Inch Water Service	\$ 1400.	1\$ 114,800
24.	2	EA	306-1.6	237110	6-Inch Fire Hydrant Assembly & Marker	\$4050	1\$9,300
25.	6	EA	306-1.6	237110	12-Inch Gate Valve	\$24001	1\$14,400
26.	3	EA	306-1.6	237110	8-Inch Gate Valve	\$1550	\$4,450
27.	1	EA	306-18	237110	2-Inch Blowoff Valve Assembly	\$3700	1\$3,700,-
28.	1	EA	306-19	237110	2-Inch Air & Vacuum Valve	\$4350	1\$4,350
29.	1	EA	309-4	541370	Survey Monuments	\$ 500	\$ 500
30.	1	LS	801-8.4	541330	Water Pollution Control Program Development		\$ 585
31.	1	LS	801-9.4	237990	Water Pollution Control Program Implementation		\$730,-
32.	1,000	SF	302-5.2.1	237310	Pavement Restoration Adjacent to Trench	\$7.7	\$7,000
33,	250	SF	700-1.3.1.5	237110	Pavement Restoration for City Forces Final Connection	\$ 7.7	\$1,750.
			·		ESTIMATED TOTA	AL BASE BID:	\$514,280
otai TV	BID PRICE		) (Items 1 thro HX+l		clusive) amount written in words:		dollane a

The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, the numbers of which shall be filled in on this Bid form.

List the Addenda received and being acknowledged:

If an addendum or addenda has been issued by the City and not noted as being received by the Bidder, the Bid shall be rejected as being nonresponsive.

The names of all persons interested in the foregoing proposal as principals are as follows:

IMPORTANT NOTICE: If Bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state secretary, treasurer, and manager thereof; if a co-partnership, state true name of firm, also names of all individual co-partners composing firm; if Bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first and last names in full.

Bidder: (1() Valley ENGNALING, MC COMPLET H WATHER	
Title: President	
Business Address: USU Front St EI COUD CA 90000	
Place of Business: USU Front St El Cajon CA 90000	ł
Place of Residence: 822, Council picury EL Cayon CA 9309	
Signature: Alland H Alat	
NOTES:	;
NOTERS: 7	5

#### **NOTES:**

- A. The City shall determine the low Bid based on the Base Bid alone.
- Prices and notations shall be in ink or typewritten. All corrections (which have been initiated by the Bidder using erasures, strike out, line out, or B. "white-out") shall be typed or written in with ink adjacent thereto, and shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the bid proposal.
- Failure to initial all corrections made in the bidding documents shall cause the Bid to be rejected as non-responsive and ineligible for C. further consideration.

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Water Group Job 941

- D. Blank spaces must be filled in, using figures. Bidder's failure to submit a price for any Bid item that requires the Bidder to submit a price shall render the Bid **non-responsive** and shall be cause for its rejection.
- E. Unit prices shall be entered for all unit price items. Unit prices shall not exceed two (2) decimal places. If the Unit prices entered exceed two (2) decimal places, the City will only use the first two digits after the decimal points without rounding up or down
- F. All extensions of the unit prices bid will be subject to verification by the City. In the case of inconsistency or conflict between the product of the Quantity x Unit Price and the Extension, the product shall govern.
- G. In the case of inconsistency or conflict, between the sums of the Extensions with the estimated total Bid, the sum of the Extensions shall govern.
- H. Bids shall not contain any recapitulation of the Work. Conditional Bids will be rejected as being **non-responsive**. Alternative proposals will not be considered unless called for.

#### LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In accordance with the requirements provided in the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and address of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also list below the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors that Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR	CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER	TYPE OF WORK	DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB ①	WHERE CERTIFIED 2	CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP	The second se
Name: HAVIMUH Recycling Syste Address: 10240 San Sevance way City: Juvupa Valky State: OA Zip: 91752 Phone: 951-682-1091		Cold Millin	4,2106.~				h.
Name: RAP Engineering Address: 420 OWC. ACC City: WS49 State: CIA Zip: 92083 Phone: 7100-233-218	Constructor	Asphalt Paving	\$\$7,098	SLBÉ	city	0	21
Name: LSI ROad Marking Address: PO BOX 24710 City: El (QUM State: CIA Zip: QOO21 Phone: U19 443 7715	Constructor	Stripine	\$3,405,-	SLBE	City	2	
<ul> <li>As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcomplete</li> </ul>	ntractor as one of the	following an	d shall include a valid	proof of certification (except	t for OBE, SLB	E and ELBE):	]

Certified	Minority Business Enterprise	MBE	Certified Woman Business Enterprise	WBE
Certified	Disadvantaged Business Enterprise	DBE	Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise	DVBE
Other Bu	siness Enterprise	OBE	Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise	ELBE
Certified	Small Local Business Enterprise	SLBE	Small Disadvantaged Business	SDB
Woman-	Owned Small Business	WoSB	HUBZone Business	HUBZone
Service-I	Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business	SDVOSB		
② As approximately approxim	opriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is certi	fied by:		
City of S	an Diego	CITY	State of California Department of Transportation	CALTRANS
Californi	a Public Utilities Commission	CPUC	San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council	SRMSDC
State of C	California's Department of General Services	CADoGS	City of Los Angeles	LA
State of G	California	CA	U.S. Small Business Administration	SBA
The Bidder	will not receive any subcontracting participation	n percentages if th	e Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certificat	tion (except for
OBE, SLBE	and ELBE).			-
Form Title:	LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS			

Form Number: AA35

ADDENDUM "A"

#### LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In accordance with the requirements provided in the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and address of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also list below the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors that Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR	CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER	TYPE OF WORK	DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB ①	WHERE CERTIFIED 2	CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP
Name: FEYM Electric Address: 0/2000 ISAAC. St #G City: Santle State: 0A Zip: 92071 Phone: 0/9.045	Constructor	Traffiz 1007-25	#2000	SLBE	city	
Name: VIGCO FACT Address: 4150 Merritt Blvd City: La Mesa State: CA Zip: 91941 Phone: UNI-589-0080	Constructor	Pie- Construct Vicked	in \$350	ELBE	Gty	
Name: (100511 Chlandhn Address: 41705 San Path ao Lh City: 1 Chreula State: CH Zip: 92592 Phone: 951. (1710.128)	Constructor	Chlorin<	fià \$1,450,-			

① As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcontractor as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):

	Certified Minority Business Enterprise Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Other Business Enterprise Certified Small Local Business Enterprise Woman-Owned Small Business Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business	MBE DBE OBE SLBE WoSB SDVOSB	Certified Woman Business Enterprise Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise Small Disadvantaged Business HUBZone Business		WBE DVBE ELBE SDB HUBZone
2	As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is certified b	by:			
	City of San Diego California Public Utilities Commission State of California's Department of General Services State of California Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation per E, SLBE and ELBE).	CITY CPUC CADoGS CA centages if the B	State of California Department of Transportation San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council City of Los Angeles U.S. Small Business Administration idder fails to submit the required proof of certi	l	ALTRANS SRMSDC LA SBA except for
For	m Title: LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS m Number: AA35				
	gust 23, 2012 ter Group Job 941	ADDENDUM "A	,u	P	Page 2 of 2

#### LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In accordance with the requirements provided in the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and address of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also list below the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, WBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors that Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR	CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER	TYPE OF WORK	DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB ①	WHERE CERTIFIED 2	CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP			
Name: <u>BS</u> (DACUAC Address: <u>042</u> 3/0 AVC City: <u>Chulg VISH</u> State: <u>CA</u> Zip: <u>91901</u> Phone: <u>UII 7207317</u>	Construction	Concrete Flatwork		SLBE	city				
Name: MCGVath CMSUITA Address: PO BOX 20205 City: El CCUM State: CA Zip: 92021 Phone: U192502025	Constructor	WPCP	\$ 585, 1	ELBE	City				
Name:									
① As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcontractor as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):									
Certified Minority Business Enterprise Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Other Business Enterprise		MBE DBE OBE	Certified D	Voman Business Enterprise lisabled Veteran Business Enter merging Local Business Enter	A	WBE DVBE ELBE			

Certified Small Local Business Enterprise SLBE Small Disadvantaged Business SDB Woman-Owned Small Business WoSB HUBZone Business HUBZone Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business **SDVOSB** As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is certified by: City of San Diego CITY State of California Department of Transportation CALTRANS California Public Utilities Commission CPUC San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council SRMSDC State of California's Department of General Services CADoGS City of Los Angeles LA State of California U.S. Small Business Administration SBA CA The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation percentages if the Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE). Form Title: LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Form Title: LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS Form Number: AA35

#### NAMED EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SUPPLIER LIST

The Bidder seeking the recognition of equipment, materials, or supplies obtained from Suppliers towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages shall list the Supplier(s) on the Named Equipment/Material Supplier List. The Named Equipment/Material Supplier List, at a minimum, shall have the name, locations (City) and the **DOLLAR VALUE** of the Suppliers. The Bidder will be credited up to 60% of the amount to be paid to the Suppliers for such materials and supplies unless vendor manufactures or substantially alters materials and supplies in which case 100% will be credited. The Bidder is to indicate (Yes/No) whether listed firm is a supplier or manufacturer. In calculating the subcontractor participation percentages, vendors/suppliers will receive 60% credit of the listed **DOLLAR VALUE**, whereas manufacturers will receive 100% credit. If no indication provided, listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed dollar value for purposes of calculating the Subcontractor Participation Percentage, Suppliers will receive 60% credit of the listed **DOLLAR VALUE**, whereas manufacturers will receive 100% credit. If no indication provided, listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed dollar value for purposes of calculating the Subcontractor participation percentages. If no indication provided, listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed pole.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF VENDOR/SUPPLIER	MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES	DOLLAR VALUE OF MATERIAL OR SUPPLIES	SUPPLIER (Yes/No)	MANUFACTURER (Yes/No)	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB ©	WHERE CERTIFIED 2
Name:Address:State:State:	-					
Name:     Address:     City:   State:     Zip:   Phone:	-					
Name:           Address:           City:         State:           Zip:         Phone:	-					

① As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Vendor/Supplier as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):

ELBE SDB HUBZone
CALTRANS SRMSDC LA SBA
ion (except for
Rev. June 2011)
15   Page